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September 28, 2012
 
Dear Shareholders:
 
In Fiscal Year 2011-2012 “momentum” was the watchword for Integral Technologies.  ElectriPlast’s commercialization break-out gained steam
as increasing energy costs and new Corporate Average Fuel Economy (CAFE) standards accelerated demand for light-weight component
solutions in the automotive, electronics and consumer goods sectors.
 
With a new economic and regulatory landscape coming into clearer focus, we see the emergence of broad, diverse markets for ElectriPlast’s
groundbreaking patented line of electrically conductive composite materials engineered to replace traditional metals.  Across industries,
lightweighting is fast becoming an imperative rather than merely an alternative, and so it is ever more critical that Integral’s R&D keep us on the
leading edge of conductive plastics technology. Likewise, we must continue to rise to the challenge of evangelizing our disruptive products to
potential customers who are just now waking up to a dramatically shifting manufacturing reality.
 
We firmly believe that Integral is at the cusp of a major inflection point both within the context of the larger industry environment and in terms
of our own business narrative. The numbers in the financial statements accompanying our just-filed Form 10-K are indicative of this status, and
provide worthwhile insight into Integral’s journey so far, where we are headed, and how we intend to get there.
 
As of June 30, 2012, all of Integral’s liabilities were current liabilities comprising accounts payable, accruals, a promissory note, and amounts
owing to employees, consultants, current attorneys and auditors, our manufacturer Jasper Rubber, and legal fees.  We see the significant dollar
amounts of these obligations as powerful affirmation of our employees’ and consultants’ confidence in the soundness of our business and a
belief in the revolutionary potential of our ElectriPlast® technology.
 
To dive a bit deeper into the figures behind our liabilities, fees related to patent filings accounted approximately $535,000 of our total legal
expenditures.  This number reflects the additional high-quality IP services Integral obtained to maximize the value of our broad spectrum of
patented conductive hybrid plastics. It also bears noting that the ElectriPlast® intellectual property portfolio is a major hidden component of our
financial status. As ipCapital Group stated in a 2010 report, “Integral is the clear leader with the most issued patents related to resin-based
conductive materials – a very impressive finding, especially for a micro-cap company in a field that includes very large players.” Of course,
accounting rules do not permit the inclusion of IP values as an asset on our balance sheet, but if the value of this disruptive technology were
included, the balance sheet would tell a vastly different story.
 
As our financial statements indicate, Integral’s accumulated deficit is approximately $40 million. A critical factor to keep in mind when
examining this figure is that it takes into account significant non-cash items such as $8 million in stock-based compensation since Integral’s
inception. To put the overall deficit number in the appropriate context, the key consideration is that the actual cash incurred since Integral’s
founding in 1996 is $22.8 million – in our estimation, a relatively modest figure over 16 years, particularly in light of ElectriPlast’s vast
potential market.
 
The biggest question you may have as a shareholder is “Where is the revenue?” A fair question if ever there was one, but also one for which
we have encouraging responses. Integral’s approach to revenue generation is two-pronged: (1) selling our proprietary ElectriPlast® pellet, and
(2) licensing our technology on an upfront fee and royalties basis. On both of these fronts, we have continued to make significant foundational
progress, having formed ElectriPlast Corp. to provide the necessary infrastructure to handle current relationships and new sales inquiries, and
to field and develop the multiple licensing and distribution opportunities now being presented to us world-wide, including joint development
relationships. While positioning Integral to maximize these opportunities requires an investment in legal and global markets expertise, it is an
investment that we expect to yield handsome returns.
 

 
 



 
 
As noted above, one of the biggest challenges surrounding the invention and marketing of a disruptive technology like ElectriPlast® is
convincing customers that disruption can be a good thing. Industrial engineers and manufacturers are often reluctant to embrace major changes,
and who can blame them. For the most part, the industrial engineering community believes that it is meeting market needs. In the present tense
this is true, but Integral’s challenge is to make our customers see, as we have, that the market needs of the future are drastically different – and
looming. Rising fuel prices and stricter regulations are driving the need to establish and meet lightweighting objectives, and our value
proposition to our client industries is that early adoption of ElectriPlast® technology will put them in the pole position.
 
We recognize that the success of ElectriPlast® over the long-term will depend on reaching the many available untapped markets.  In this regard,
we are pleased to report that our investments in composite line diversification and push to realize commercialization are already bearing fruit.
Rigorous beta trials by several multinational companies seeking to deploy conductive plastics technology have demonstrated ElectriPlast’s
clearly superior technical performance compared to every other competitor. Successful commercialization with these companies will lead to a
wide variety of ElectriPlast® applications. On the distribution front, we recently signed a letter of intent with Korean conglomerate Hanwha that
contemplates a license to manufacture and distribute ElectriPlast® technology around the vast Asian continent. Hanwha has recognized
ElectriPlast’s excellent strategic fit with its own expansive geographic manufacturing reach in the thermoplastics industry, and we anticipate that
other transnational concerns soon will as well.
 
At Integral, we know that the potential for our ElectriPlast® technology is vast; we also know realizing that potential to its fullest will demand
leveraging the tremendous momentum we have built so far with the dedication of our employees, strategic partners, and above all, our
shareholders. With your continued commitment to our ambitious mission, Integral is poised to make a major impact.
 
Safe Harbor Statement
 
This letter contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the 1933 Securities Act and Section 21E of the 1934
Securities Exchange Act. These statements include, without limitation, predictions and guidance relating to the company’s future financial
performance and the research, development and commercialization of its technologies.  In some cases, you can identify forward-looking
statements by terminology such as, “may,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,”
“continue,” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology.  These forward-looking statements are based on management’s
current expectations, but they involve a number of risks and uncertainties.  Actual results and the timing of events could differ materially from
those anticipated in the forward-looking statements, as the result of such factors, risks and uncertainties as (1) competition in the markets for the
products and services sold by the company, (2) the ability of the company to execute its plans, (3) other factors detailed in the company's public
filings with the SEC, including, without limitation, those described in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30,
2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and available at www.sec.gov.
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PART I

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT IDENTIFYING IMPORTANT FACTORS
THAT COULD CAUSE THE COMPANY’S ACTUAL RESULTS TO

DIFFER FROM THOSE PROJECTED IN FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Readers of this document, and any document incorporated by reference herein, are advised that this document and documents incorporated by
reference into this document contain both statements of historical facts and forward looking statements.  Forward looking statements are subject
to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward looking
statements.  Examples of forward looking statements include, but are not limited to, (i) projections of revenues, income or loss, earnings or loss
per share, capital expenditures, dividends, capital structure and other financial items, (ii) statements of the plans and objectives of Integral
Technologies, Inc. or our management or Board of Directors, including the introduction of new products, or estimates or predictions of actions
by customers, suppliers, competitors or regulatory authorities, (iii) statements of future economic performance, and (iv) statements of
assumptions underlying other statements and statements about our company or our business.

This document, and any documents incorporated by reference herein, also identifies important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those indicated by forward looking statements.  These risks and uncertainties include price competition, the decisions of
customers, the actions of competitors, the effects of government regulation, possible delays in the introduction of new products and services,
customer acceptance of products and services, our ability to secure debt and/or equity financing on reasonable terms, and other factors that are
described herein and/or in documents incorporated by reference herein.

The cautionary statements made above and elsewhere should not be construed as exhaustive or as any admission regarding the adequacy of
disclosures made by Integral Technologies, Inc.  Forward looking statements are beyond the ability of our company to control and in many cases
we cannot predict what factors would cause results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward looking statements.  We do not
undertake any duty to update forward looking statements and the estimates and assumptions associated with them as circumstances change,
except to the extent required by applicable federal securities laws.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Integral Technologies, Inc. (“Integral,” the “Company” or “we”) is a development stage company, incorporated under the laws of the State of
Nevada on February 12, 1996. To date, we have expended resources on the research and development of several different types of technologies.

Presently, we are focusing substantially all of our resources on researching, developing, engineering and commercializing our ElectriPlast®
technology, which possesses a multitude of applications.  In addition, we apply a significant portion of our resources to the protection of our
intellectual property through patent filings.  To date, we have not realized any revenue from our efforts.  We expect to derive future revenues from
the sale of ElectriPlast® materials and/or fees from licensing ElectriPlast® technologies to third-party manufacturers.

Our business model calls for the Company to secure sales of ElectriPlast® material from over 2000 Global manufacturers and to generate
revenue through the sale of ElectriPlast® material and licensing ElectriPlast®. The Company’s management has expertise and know-how in the
ideas related to the use of the product.

Our business strategy focuses on leveraging our intellectual property rights and our strengths in product design and material innovation. We are
focusing our marketing efforts on securing licensing agreements for applications of our ElectriPlast® technologies with manufacturers of
products which would benefit from the incorporation of many of the ElectriPlast® applications.
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TECHNOLOGIES

ElectriPlast®

We have researched and developed an innovative, electrically-conductive resin-based material called “ElectriPlast®.” The ElectriPlast® polymer is
a compounded formulation of resin-based materials that are conductively loaded, or doped, with a proprietary-controlled, balanced concentration
of micron conductive materials, then pelletized. The conductive loading or doping within this pellet is then homogenized using conventional
molding techniques and conventional molding equipment. The end result is a product that can be molded into any of the infinite shapes and sizes
associated with plastics and rubbers, and is non-corrosive, but which is as electrically conductive as if it were metal.

ElectriPlast® is a patented non-corrosive, durable, conductive plastic pellet that replaces the metallic component currently used in electroactive
shielding and conductive devices, thus creating applications never before possible and with a 20-70% weight reduction.  ElectriPlast's®
intellectual property rights and 49 pending patents covering both the material and its applications.

Various examples of applications for ElectriPlast® include car antennas, shielding, lighting circuitry, switch actuators, resistors, medical devices,
thermal management and cable connector bodies, among many others. We have been working to introduce these new applications and the
ElectriPlast® technology on a global scale.

ElectriPlast® can be tailored to meet each customer's specifications in ways not possible with other conductive plastics. While other conductive
plastics are an indistinguishable commodity, ElectriPlast® creates revolutionary applications that fundamentally change the way electricity is
harnessed and managed.

The ElectriPlast® portfolio of applications is the centerpiece of Integral’s strategy to aggressively develop, protect, and market its innovations.
Integral’s patent holdings encompass a broad range of ElectriPlast® developments including the core technology, key applications and related
micron conductive fiber technology.

ElectriPlast® can be fabricated into virtually any shape or dimension using low-cost capital investment: injection molding and extrusion (locally
done with existing tools) versus stamping (often done overseas). Its design flexibility, shorter development cycle and speed of manufacturing
create a valuable market edge for customers.

Working with Integral to bring ElectriPlast® to market is its exclusive manufacturer, Jasper Rubber Products, Inc. (“Jasper”)
(www.jasperrubber.com).

Jasper, founded in 1949, is a leader in innovative rubber and plastics development. It manufactures a full range of products for customers in the
major appliance, oil filter, and automotive industries, a number of which are Fortune 500 companies.

Patents/Trademarks on Technologies

Our intellectual property portfolio consists of over eleven years of accumulated research and design knowledge and trade secrets.  We have
sought United States (“US”) patent protection for many of our ideas related to our ElectriPlast® technologies.  Currently, we have filed 108 non-
provisional US patent applications, 54 of which have been issued as patents, with 50 of those issued patents not yet expired.  No assurances can
be given that all patent applications will be approved; however, to the extent that patents are not granted, we will continue to attempt to
commercialize these technologies without the protection of patents.  As patents are issued, we will have the exclusive right to use and license the
design(s) described in each issued patent for the life of the patent in the US.

Of the 108 non-provisional applications filed that have not issued as patents, 11 are currently pending, and 42 are no longer pending.  Integral
continues to pursue intellectual property protection through its patent and trademark portfolio while constantly evaluating its filings to judiciously
apply resources to our most critical technologies.  Integral has filed 12 Canadian patent applications, 2 of which have issued, with 10 no longer
being active.
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Integral has one pending US trademark application for ELECTRIPLASTTM, one registered US trademark for ELECTRIPLAST®, and a
registered US trademark for INTEGRAL (with design)®. In addition, Integral has pending trademark applications in China, Europe, Japan,
Korea and Taiwan for ELECTRIPLAST®. These applications and registration establish rights for the use of these marks in commerce.

Product Manufacturing and Distribution

We are not in the manufacturing business.  We have entered into an exclusive manufacturing agreement with Jasper, discussed herein, which
provides for Jasper to manufacture ElectriPlast® for us.

After 60 months of refining the manufacturing and molding process of ElectriPlast®, the Jasper facility is now capable of producing over 50,000
pounds of ElectriPlast® pellets per month.  We have entered into patent license agreements with several companies, as summarized below, and
we are in the process of producing prototypes of requested applications of ElectriPlast® for these companies as well as other prospective
customers. In addition to its manufacturing capabilities, Jasper has a distribution network throughout the US and Canada, allowing for
ElectriPlast® to be introduced and delivered to prospective and current customers.

We anticipate that our technologies will not be sold directly to the general public, but rather to businesses and manufacturers of certain products
who will incorporate our technologies as components in the design of their products.

Barriers to Entry into Market Segment

We have been working to introduce the ElectriPlast® technology as an alternative to metal for use as an electrically conductive material.  The
process of educating potential customers about ElectriPlast® may prove time consuming and difficult.

SUMMARY OF AGREEMENTS

We are focusing our marketing efforts on securing licensing agreements for applications of our ElectriPlast® technology.  Our technologies will
be marketed to manufactures of products which would benefit from the incorporation of any of the ElectriPlast® applications into their
products.  Below is a summary of each of our commercial agreements concerning our ElectriPlast® technology:

Patent License Agreement with Heatron, Inc.

In March 2006, we entered into a Patent License Agreement with Heatron, Inc. (“Heatron”), pursuant to which we granted to Heatron the rights
to use our ElectriPlast® technology for specific applications in the heating and LED lighting markets.  Heatron, founded in 1977 and based in
Leavenworth, Kansas, is an industry leader in heating element and thermal management designs and solutions.

We granted to Heatron a non-exclusive, non-sublicensable, non-assignable, worldwide license; however, Heatron’s rights were exclusive for the
initial two years.  The agreement will terminate upon the expiration of the last patent licensed under the agreement, or earlier under certain other
circumstances.

Heatron paid to us a nominal up-front license fee of $1.00.  Any revenue to be generated by us under the agreement will be from future sales of
products manufactured by Heatron containing the ElectriPlast® technology.  We have not yet derived revenues from this agreement.

Patent License Agreement with Jasper Rubber Products, Inc.

In August 2006, we entered into a Patent License Agreement with Jasper, pursuant to which we granted to Jasper the rights to use our
ElectriPlast® technology for specific applications within its customer base.  Jasper, founded in 1949, and based in Jasper, Indiana, is an industry
leader in innovative rubber and plastics development. Jasper manufactures a full range of molded, extruded, lathe-cut rubber and thermoplastic
products for customers in the major appliance, oil filter, and automotive industries, a number of which are Fortune 500 companies.
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We granted to Jasper a non-exclusive, non-sublicensable, non-assignable, worldwide license.  The agreement will terminate upon the expiration
of the last patent licensed under the agreement, or earlier under certain circumstances.

Jasper paid to us a nominal up-front license fee of $1.00.  Any revenue to be generated by us under the agreement will be from future sales of
products manufactured by Jasper containing the ElectriPlast® technology.  We have not yet derived revenues from this agreement.

Manufacturing Agreement with Jasper Rubber Products, Inc.

In November 2006, we entered into a Manufacturing Agreement with Jasper, pursuant to which Jasper manufactures resin-based conductive,
moldable capsules incorporating our ElectriPlast® technology.  The primary term of the agreement is five years, subject to automatic renewal or
termination under certain conditions.  Jasper agreed that during the term of the agreement and for a period of 12 months after its expiration or
termination for any reason, Jasper will not directly or indirectly compete with us or our ElectriPlast® technology.

In July 2007, we entered into an Amendment One to the Manufacturing Agreement (“Amendment One”) with Jasper.  The primary purposes of
Amendment One were 1) to replace in its entirety Section 4 of the Manufacturing Agreement concerning “Pricing, Invoicing and Payment”, and
2) to authorize Jasper to sell, on our behalf, products incorporating our ElectriPlast® technology.  As revised by Amendment One, Section 4 of
the Manufacturing Agreement now reflects more definitive information concerning definitions and calculations of “hourly payment”, “sales
royalties”, “gross margin”, “manufacturing costs” and “payment terms”.  These revisions were mutually agreed upon following several months of
production test-runs and cost evaluations.

Patent License Agreement with ADAC Plastics, Inc. d/b/a ADAC Automotive.

In November 2006, we entered into a Patent License Agreement with ADAC Plastics, Inc. d/b/a ADAC Automotive (“ADAC”), pursuant to
which we granted to ADAC the rights to use our ElectriPlast® technology for use in car antennas, cup holder heating elements, driver’s seat
heating elements and light-emitting diode (LED) packs manufactured and sold by specified customers of ADAC.  ADAC is a full-service
automotive supplier dedicated to the production of door handles and components, cowl vent grilles, exterior trim, and marker lighting. Founded in
1975 as ADAC Plastics, Inc., the Grand Rapids, Michigan-based company operates facilities in North America and the United Kingdom.

We granted to ADAC a non-exclusive, non-sublicensable, non-assignable, worldwide license.  The agreement will terminate upon the expiration
of the last patent licensed under the agreement, or earlier under certain circumstances.

ADAC paid to us a nominal up-front license fee of $1.00.  Any revenue to be generated by us under the agreement will be from future sales of
products manufactured by ADAC containing the ElectriPlast® technology.  We have not yet derived revenues from this agreement.

Patent License Agreement with Esprit Solutions Limited

In December 2006, we entered into a Patent License Agreement with Esprit Solutions Limited (“Esprit”), pursuant to which we granted to Esprit
the rights to use our ElectriPlast® technology for the manufacture and sale of products to Esprit’s customer base in the Aerospace/Defense
Interconnection and Protective Components Industry.  Esprit, based in the United Kingdom, specializes in high performance protective systems
within the Aerospace and Defense markets.

We granted to Esprit a non-exclusive, non-sublicensable, non-assignable, worldwide license.  The agreement will terminate upon the expiration of
the last patent licensed under the agreement, or earlier under certain circumstances.

Esprit paid to us a nominal up-front license fee of $1.00.  Any revenue to be generated by us under the agreement will be from raw materials
fees.  We have not yet derived revenues from this agreement.
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Patent License Agreement with Knowles Electronics, LLC

In January 2007, we entered into a Patent License Agreement with Knowles Electronics, LLC (“Knowles”), pursuant to which we granted to
Knowles the rights to use our proprietary ElectriPlast® technology for the manufacture and sale of electromagnetic field (EMF) protected molded
components.  Knowles is the world's leading provider of microphones and receivers to the hearing health industry. They are credited with the
miniaturization of the acoustic transducer, which has enabled the design and manufacture of smaller hearing aids.

We granted to Knowles a non-exclusive, non-sub-licensable, non-assignable, worldwide license.  The agreement will terminate upon the
expiration of the last patent licensed under the agreement, or earlier under certain circumstances.

Knowles paid a nominal up-front fee of $1.00 to Integral.  Any revenue to be generated by us under the agreement will be from raw materials
fees.

EMPLOYEES/CONSULTANTS

We currently employ or retain a total of 4 employees on a full-time basis.  We also rely on the expertise of 4 advisors who are engaged as
consultants on a contractual basis.

SEC REPORTS AVAILABLE ON WEBSITE

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) maintains an Internet site (http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.  Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and other SEC filings are available on the SEC’s website or by visiting our
company website at www.itkg.net.

ITEM 1A.RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves major risks. Before you invest in our common stock, you should be aware that there are various
risks, including those described below.  You should carefully consider these risk factors together with all of the other information included in this
annual report on Form 10-K before you decide to invest in shares of our common stock.

Purchase of our stock is a highly speculative and you could lose your entire investment.  We have been operating at a loss since inception,
and you cannot assume that our business plans will either materialize or prove successful.  In the event our plans are unsuccessful, you may lose
all or substantially all of your investment.  The purchase of our stock must be considered a highly speculative investment.

We have incurred substantial losses from inception and we have never generated revenues; failure to achieve profitability in the future
would likely cause the market price for our common stock to decline significantly.  We have generated net losses from inception and we
have an accumulated deficit of approximately $40.3 million as of June 30, 2012.

If we do not generate adequate revenues in our fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, we will be required to raise capital to continue our
operations.  Unless we generate adequate revenues from operations (we have had no revenue to date) in the near future, we will require
additional financing to carry out our business plans next year, and such financing may not be available at that time. If we require additional
financing, we may seek additional funds through private placements that will be exempt from registration and will not require prior shareholder
approval.  If additional funds are raised by issuing common stock, or securities that are convertible into common stock (such as preferred stock,
warrants, or convertible debentures), further dilution to shareholders could occur.  Additionally, investors could be granted registration rights by
us that could result in market overhang and depress the market price of the common stock.  If we fail to obtain sufficient additional financing, we
will not be able to implement our business plans in an effective or timely manner.
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If we are unable to compete effectively with our competitors, we will not be successful generating revenues or attaining profits.  Our
ability to generate revenues and achieve profitability is directly related to our ability to compete with our competitors. Most of the companies with
which we compete and expect to compete have far greater capital resources and more significant research and development staffs, marketing and
distribution programs and facilities, and many of them have substantially greater experience in the production and marketing of products.  In each
market, we face competition from companies with established technologies.  Currently, we believe that we will be able to compete because of the
relative performance, price and adaptability of our unique ElectriPlast®technology. Our beliefs are based only on our research and development
testing efforts.  If we are unable to compete effectively, we will not be successful in generating revenues or attaining profits.

Loss of key personnel could cause a major disruption in our day-to-day operations and we could lose our relationships with
customers and third-parties with whom we do business. Our future success significantly depends upon the continued service of certain key
personnel.  Competition for such key personnel is intense, and to be successful we must retain our key personnel.  The loss of any key personnel
or the inability to hire or retain qualified replacement personnel could cause a major disruption in our operations and we could lose our
relationships with customers and third-parties with whom we do business, which could materially and adversely affect our financial condition
and results of operations.

If future market acceptance of our ElectriPlast® technology is poor, we will not be able to generate adequate sales to achieve profitable
operations.  Our future is dependent upon the success of our current and future marketing efforts put towards our ElectriPlast®
technology.  Our ElectriPlast® technology will be marketed to manufacturers of products that will benefit from the incorporation of any of the
ElectriPlast®applications into their products.  As of June 30, 2012, we have not generated any revenue from our ElectriPlast® technology.  If
future market acceptance of our ElectriPlast®technology is poor, we will not be able to generate adequate sales to achieve profitable operations.

Dependence on outside suppliers and manufacturers could disrupt our business if they fail to meet our expectations.  Currently, we rely
on outside suppliers and manufacturers to produce ElectriPlast®for us.  While we have entered into formal arrangements with outside suppliers
and manufacturers for the production of ElectriPlast®if any of them should become too expensive or suffer from quality control problems or
financial difficulties, we would have to find alternative sources.  If alternative sources are not readily available, this could significantly disrupt our
business.

Our patent and other intellectual property rights may be subject to uncertainty and may be challenged or circumvented by
competitors.  We rely on a combination of patents, patent applications, trademarks, trade secrets and confidentiality procedures to protect our
intellectual property rights, which we believe will give us a competitive advantage over our competitors. We have sought US patent protection for
many of our ideas related to our ElectriPlast® technologies.  Our intellectual property portfolio consists of over eleven years of accumulated
research and design knowledge and trade secrets.  We have sought United States (“US”) patent protection for many of our ideas related to our
ElectriPlast® technologies.  Currently, we have filed 108 non-provisional US patent applications, 54 of which have been issued as patents, with
50 of those issued patents not yet expired.  No assurances can be given that all patent applications will be approved; however, to the extent that
patents are not granted, we will continue to attempt to commercialize these technologies without the protection of patents.  As patents are issued,
we will have the exclusive right to use and license the design(s) described in each issued patent for the life of the patent in the US.

Of the 108 non-provisional applications filed that have not issued as patents, 11 are currently pending, and 42 are no longer pending.  Integral
continues to pursue intellectual property protection through its patent and trademark portfolio while constantly evaluating its filings to judiciously
apply resources to our most critical technologies.  Integral has filed 12 Canadian patent applications, 2 of which have issued, with 10 no longer
being active.

Integral has one pending US trademark application for ELECTRIPLASTTM, one registered US trademark for ELECTRIPLAST®, and a
registered US trademark for INTEGRAL (with design)®.  In addition, Integral has pending trademark applications in China, Europe, Japan,
Korea and Taiwan for ELECTRIPLAST®.  These applications and registration establish rights for the use of these marks in commerce.
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The issuance of a patent is not conclusive as to its validity or enforceability and, if a patent is issued, it is uncertain how much protection, if any,
will be given to our patent if we attempt to enforce it.  Litigation, which could be costly and time consuming, may be necessary to enforce our
current patents, or any patent issued in the future, or to determine the scope and validity of the proprietary rights of third parties. A competitor
may successfully challenge the validity or enforceability of a patent or challenge the extent of the patent’s coverage. If the outcome of litigation is
adverse to us, third parties may be able to use our patented technology without payment to us. Even if we are successful in defending such
litigation, the cost of litigation to uphold the patent can be substantial.

It is possible that competitors may infringe upon our patents or successfully avoid them through design innovation. To stop these activities we
may need to file a lawsuit. These lawsuits are expensive and would consume time and other resources of the Company. In addition, there is a risk
that a court would decide that our patent is not valid, that we do not have the right to stop the other party from using the inventions, or that the
competitor’s activities do not infringe our patent.

Our competitive position is also dependent upon unpatented technology and trade secrets, which may be difficult to protect. Competitors may
independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information and techniques that would legally circumvent our intellectual property
rights.  The inability to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, or any substantial expenses incurred in protecting our intellectual
property rights, could have a material adverse affect on our financial condition and results of operations.

The use of our technologies could potentially conflict with the rights of others.  Our competitors, or others, may have or may acquire patent
rights that they could enforce against us. If our products conflict with patent rights of others, third parties could bring legal actions against us, our
suppliers or customers, claiming damages and seeking to enjoin manufacturing and marketing of the affected products. If these legal actions are
successful, in addition to any potential liability for damages, we could be required to alter our products or obtain a license in order to continue to
manufacture or market the affected products. We may not prevail in any legal action and a required license under the patent may not be available
on acceptable terms or at all. The cost to us of any litigation or other proceeding relating to intellectual property rights, even if resolved in our
favor, could be substantial.  The inability to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, or any substantial expenses incurred in protecting
our intellectual property rights, could have a material adverse affect on our financial condition and results of operations.

If there are defects and errors in the Company’s technology, it may lose revenues.  Defects and errors in current or future services or
products could result in delay or prevent further deployment of the Company’s technology, lost revenues, or a delay in or failure to achieve
market acceptance. Any of these scenarios could seriously harm the Company’s business and operating results. If the Company’s products
contain defects not discovered in the process of development or in its current deployment, it could seriously undermine the perceived trust and
security needed for a commercial system and could delay or prevent market acceptance of its technology resulting in material adverse effects to
the Company’s business and operating results. Any defect or error could also deter potential customers, result in loss of customer confidence and
adversely affect the Company’s existing customer relationships.

Holders of preferred stock have rights that are senior to the rights of holders of common stock.  Our Articles of Incorporation authorize
the issuance of 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock.  The preferred stock may be divided into one or more series.  Our board of directors is
authorized to determine the rights, provisions, privileges and restrictions and number of authorized shares of any series of preferred
stock.  Additionally, the preferred stock can have other rights, including voting and economic rights that are senior to the common stock.  The
issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect the market value of the common stock.

As of June 30, 2012, 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock have been designated as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of which 308,538 are
issued and outstanding, and held by two of our insiders.  Each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock:

 ● has a stated value and liquidation preference of $1.00;

 ● has a 5% annual dividend, payable in cash or shares of common stock at the discretion of the Board of Directors;

 ● may be converted into shares of common stock (determined by dividing the number of shares of Series A being converted by the
average of the high and low bid prices of our common stock reported by the OTC Bulletin Board over the ten trading days
preceding the date of conversion);
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 ● may be redeemed by us within one year after issuance at $1.50, after one year but less than two years at $2.00, after two years but

less than three years at $2.50, after three years but less than four years at $3.00, and after four years but less than five years at
$3.50;

 
 ● during the year ended June 30, 2010, an amendment was made to the Series A convertible preferred shares in which they may be

redeemed after five years but less than six years after the date of issue at a redemption price of $4.00 and increasing $0.50 per year
for each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock so redeemed;

 ● may be voted on all matters on an as-converted basis; and

 ● may be voted as a class on any merger, share exchange, recapitalization, dissolution, liquidation or change in control of our
company.

How future issuances of common stock pursuant to our stock plans will affect you.  We have three non-qualified stock plans in effect.  As
of June 30, 2012, approximately 2,500,000 (2001-464,500, 2003-1,375,000 and 2009-660,500) options are available under the plans for future
issuance, either directly or pursuant to options, to our officers, directors, employees and consultants.  Also, as of June 30, 2012, approximately
6,500,000 options have been issued under the plans at a weighted-average exercise price of $0.44, of which, 5,100,000 options have fully vested,
at a weighted-average exercise price of approximately $0.40 per share. Additional stock or options to acquire our stock of can be granted at any
time by our board of directors, usually without shareholder approval.  When shares of common stock are issued directly or upon the exercise of
options under these plans, your ownership may be diluted.

We do not expect to be able to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future, so you should not make an investment in our stock if you
require dividend income. The payment of cash dividends, if any, in the future rests within the discretion of our board of directors and will
depend upon, among other things, our earnings, our capital requirements and our financial condition, as well as other relevant factors. We have
not paid or declared any cash dividends upon our common stock since our inception and by reason of our present financial status.  Our
contemplated future financial requirements do not contemplate or anticipate making any cash distributions upon our common stock in the
foreseeable future.

We have a limited market for our common stock that causes the market price to be volatile and to usually decline when there is more
selling than buying on any given day.  On May 9, 1997 our common stock began publicly trading on the OTC Bulletin Board under the
symbol "ITKG," and it currently trades on the PinkSheets.  At most times in the past, our common stock has been thinly traded and the market
price usually declines when there is more selling than buying on any given day. As a result, the market price has been volatile, and the market
price may decline immediately if you decide to place an order to sell your shares.

The market price of our common stock is highly volatile, and several factors that are beyond our control, including our common stock
being historically thinly traded, could adversely affect its market price.  Historically, our common stock has been thinly traded and the
market price has been highly volatile.  During the year ended June 30, 2012, the closing bid price of our common stock has been quoted on the
OTC Bulletin Board from as low as $0.24 to as high as $.65.  These quotations reflect interdealer prices without retail markup, markdown, or
commission and may not represent actual transactions.  For these and other reasons, our stock price is subject to significant volatility and will
likely be adversely affected if our revenues or earnings (or lack of revenues or earnings) in any quarter fail to meet the investment community’s
expectations. Additionally, the market price of our common stock could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to:

 ● announcements of new products or sales offered by us or our competitors;
 ● actual or anticipated variations in quarterly operating results;
 ● changes in financial estimates by securities analysts, if any;
 ● changes in the market’s perception of us or the nature of our business; and
 ● sales of our common stock.
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Future sales of common stock into the public marketplace will increase the public float and may adversely affect the market price.  As
of June 30, 2012, approximately six million shares of common stock were available for sale by both affiliates (officers and directors) and non-
affiliates under Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.  In general, under Rule 144, a person who has held stock for six months and
is not an affiliate of the Company may sell their shares without limitation under Rule 144. Future sales of common stock will increase the public
float and may have a material adverse effect on the market price of the common stock, which in turn could have a material adverse affect on our
ability to obtain future funding as well as create a potential market overhang.

“Penny Stock" regulations may adversely affect your ability to resell your stock in market transactions. The SEC has adopted penny
stock regulations that apply to securities traded over-the-counter.  These regulations generally define penny stock to be any equity security that
has a market price of less than $5.00 per share or an equity security of an issuer with net tangible assets of less than $5,000,000 as indicated in
audited financial statements, if the corporation has been in continuous operations for less than three years.  Subject to certain limited exceptions,
the rules for any transaction involving a penny stock require the delivery, prior to the transaction, of a risk disclosure document prepared by the
SEC that contains certain information describing the nature and level of risk associated with investments in the penny stock market.  The broker-
dealer also must disclose the commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered representative and current quotations for the
securities.  Monthly account statements must be sent by the broker-dealer disclosing the estimated market value of each penny stock held in the
account or indicating that the estimated market value cannot be determined because of the unavailability of firm quotes. In addition, the rules
impose additional sales practice requirements on broker-dealers who sell such securities to persons other than established customers and
institutional accredited investors (generally institutions with assets in excess of $5,000,000).  These practices require that, prior to the purchase,
the broker-dealer determined that transactions in penny stocks were suitable for the purchaser and obtained the purchaser's written consent to the
transaction.

Our common stock is currently subject to the penny stock regulations.  Compliance with the penny stock regulations by broker-dealers will likely
result in price fluctuations and the lack of a liquid market for the common stock, and may make it difficult for you to resell your stock in market
transactions.

ITEM 1B.UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We do not own any real property.  We lease office space in Bellingham, Washington and Vancouver, B.C., Canada.  We principally use the
Bellingham, Washington office space as our corporate headquarters.  All manufacturing of our products occurs at the Jasper facility.
 
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no pending legal proceedings involving our Company.
 
ITEM 4. RESERVED
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

There is a limited public market for our common stock.  On May 9, 1997, our common stock began publicly trading on the OTC Bulletin Board
under the symbol "ITKG," and it currently trades on the PinkSheets.  The following table sets forth the range of high and low bid quotations for
our common stock for each quarter of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. (update references to OTCBB to include both OTCBB and
PinkSheets if applicable.)
 

Quarter Ended  Low Bid   High Bid  
       
September 30, 2010  $ 0.70  $ 0.95 
December 31, 2010  $ 0.70  $ 0.95 
March 31, 2011  $ 0.45  $ 0.80 
June 30, 2011  $ 0.45  $ 0.78 
         
September 30, 2011  $ 0.31  $ 0.51 
December 31, 2011  $ 0.25  $ 0.51 
March 31, 2011  $ 0.24  $ 0.65 
June 30, 2012  $ 0.30  $ 0.45 

 
The source of this information is the OTC Bulletin Board and other quotation services.  The quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail
markup, markdown or commission and may not represent actual transactions.

Holders

As of September 12, 2012 there were approximately 252 holders, of record of our common stock (this number does not include beneficial
owners who hold shares at broker/dealers in “street-name”).

Dividends

To date, we have not paid any dividends on our common stock and do not expect to declare or pay any dividends on such common stock in the
foreseeable future.  Payment of any dividends will be dependent upon future earnings, if any, our financial condition, and other factors as deemed
relevant by our Board of Directors.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Information regarding the issuance and sales of securities without registration during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, has previously been
included in Quarterly Reports on Forms 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K filed during the period covered by this report. Information
regarding the recent sales of unregistered securities can be found in note 4(a) of the financial statements.

Repurchases of equity securities

We did not repurchase any of our outstanding equity securities during the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2012.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

As a “smaller reporting company,” as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act, we are not required to provide the information called for by
this Item.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATION

Overview

Integral focuses the majority of our resources on researching, developing and commercializing our ElectriPlast® technologies.  In addition its
resources are used to protect all of its intellectual property surrounding it ElectriPlast® technology. Our business strategy focuses on leveraging
our intellectual property rights and our strengths in product design and material innovation. We are focusing our marketing efforts on securing
licensing agreements for applications of our ElectriPlast® technologies with manufacturers of products which would benefit from the
incorporation of any of the ElectriPlast® applications.

ElectriPlast® is an innovative, electrically-conductive resin-based material. The ElectriPlast® polymer is a compounded formulation of resin-
based materials, which are conductively loaded, or doped, with a proprietary-controlled, balanced concentration of micron conductive materials,
then pelletized. The conductive loading or doping within this pellet is then homogenized using conventional molding techniques and conventional
molding equipment. The end result is a product that can be molded into any of the infinite shapes and sizes associated with plastics and rubbers,
which is non-corrosive, but which is as electrically conductive as if it were metal.

Various examples of applications for ElectriPlast® are car antennas, shielding, lighting circuitry, switch actuators, resistors, medical devices,
thermal management and cable connector bodies, among others. We have been working to introduce these new applications and the ElectriPlast®
technology on a global scale.

Forward Looking Statements
 
Statements contained herein that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements.  Although we believe that the expectations reflected in
such forward-looking statements are reasonable, the forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to differ from those projected.  We caution investors that any forward-looking statements made by us are not guarantees of future
performance and that actual results may differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements.  Such risks and uncertainties include,
without limitation: well-established competitors who have substantially greater financial resources and longer operating histories, regulatory
delays or denials, our ability to compete as a development stage company in a highly competitive market, our access to sources of capital, and
other risks and other risks and uncertainties.

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
Except for the historical information contained herein, the discussion in this Form 10-K contains certain forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties, such as statements of our plans, objectives, expectations and intentions. The cautionary statements made in this Form 10-
K should be read as being applicable to all related forward-looking statements wherever they appear in this Form 10-K.  Our actual results could
differ materially from those discussed here.  We do not undertake any duty to update forward looking statements and the estimates and
assumptions associated with them as circumstances change, except to the extent required by applicable federal securities laws.

To date we have recorded nominal revenues. We are still considered a development stage company for accounting purposes. From inception on
February 12, 1996 through June 30, 2012, we have accrued an accumulated deficit of approximately $40.3 million.

As of June 30, 2012, all of our assets were current assets of $191,896, consisting of cash of $172,173 and prepaid expense of $19,723.   All of
our property and equipment has been fully depreciated.
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As of June 30, 2012, all of our liabilities were current liabilities of $2,334,079 consisting of accounts payable and accruals of $2,032,309, a
promissory note payable of 123,696, a convertible debenture of 93,356 and a derivative liability of $84,718.  Of this amount, payables for legal
fees (including associated filing fees) related to patent filings accounted for approximately $535,000 of the total.

As of June 30, 2012, total stockholder’s deficit was $2,142,183.

Results of Operations of the Year Ended June 30, 2012 compared to the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Our net loss for the year ended June 30, 2012, was $3,400,434 compared to a net loss of $2,841,285 for the prior fiscal year, a difference of
$559,149.  This increase in our net loss is primarily attributable to the increase in the following expenses: Consulting expense increased by
$76,271, legal and accounting increased by $153,685, general and administrative expense increased by $113,983, interest expense increased by
$75,578 and fair value loss on derivative financial liability increased by $89,326 during the year ended June 30, 2012.

(1) Consulting fees of $1,759,230, including non-cash, stock based compensation charges (for the issuance of common stock and/or the granting
of options) of $376,698  compared to $1,682,959 for the year ended June 30, 2011, that included non-cash, stock based compensation charges
(for the issuance of common stock and/or the granting of options) of $474,075. As described in the notes to the financial statements, these values
were determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
 
(2) General and administrative expense of $203,788 includes new directors and officer’s insurance premiums of $118,352 for the year ended
June 30, 2012, compared to $nil for the year ended June 30, 2011.

(3) Interest expense of $71,659 includes amortization of convertible debt of $55,174 and interest on promissory note of $16,370, compared to
$nil recorded for the year ended June 30, 2012.

(4) Fair value loss on derivative financial liability of $89,326 consists of the total change in fair value of derivative instruments related to the
convertible debt since inception, compared to $nil recorded for the year ended June 30, 2012. As described in the notes to the financial
statements, this value was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Consulting expense during the year ended June 30, 2012, included non-cash expenses of $36,264 for the year (2011 - $nil) extension of the
expiration date of outstanding warrants held by a consultant.

Our net loss for the year ended June 30, 2012, was offset minimally by “other income” of $103 compared to “other income” in the previous fiscal
year of $797.  The category of “other income” consists of interest income and nominal license fees.

Research and development costs incurred during the year ended June 30, 2012 were $238,955, a modest decrease of $6,638 over the prior fiscal
year attributable to refining the manufacturing process by Jasper of our ElectriPlast®  material and for independent testing of several of our
ElectriPlast®  applications.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, our cash used in operating activities was $1,499,207, compared to $1,772,005 used in 2011.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, our cash provided by financing activities was $1,610,015 compared to $1,483,135 provided in 2011,
Represented by private placement proceeds of $1,339,515 (2011 - $1,483,135; 2010 - $1,404,887) and proceeds from convertible debenture
of  $270,500 in 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We anticipate spending up to approximately $250,000 over the next twelve months on ongoing research and development of the different
applications and uses of our technologies.

As of June 30, 2012, we had $172,173 in cash on hand, and we estimate that we will require $3.0 million to carry out our business plan during
our fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. Accordingly, management believes that until we generate revenues from operations (we have none to date),
additional funding will be required to carry out our business plan.
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Financing transactions may include the issuance of equity securities, obtaining additional credit facilities or other financing
mechanisms.  However, the trading price of the Company’s common stock and the downturn in the United States of America stock markets
could make it more difficult to obtain financing. If none of these events occur, there is a risk that the business will fail.

We are not in the manufacturing business and do not expect to make any capital purchases of a manufacturing plant or significant equipment in
the next twelve months.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense associated with stock options and other forms of equity compensation by
estimating the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model.  The value of the
portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as an expense over the requisite service periods in the Company’s statement
of operations.  The Company uses the straight-line single-option method to recognize the value of stock-based compensation expense for all
share-based payment awards.  Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the statement of operations is reduced for estimated forfeitures,
as it is based on awards ultimately expected to vest.  Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods
if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.

ITEM 7A.QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk related to changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates, each of which could adversely affect the
value of our investments. We do not currently use derivative financial instruments. As of June 30, 2012, our purchased investments included in
cash and cash equivalents had maturities of less than 90 days. Therefore, an increase or decrease in interest rates immediately and uniformly by
10% from our 2012 year end levels would not have a material effect upon our cash and cash equivalent balances, operating results or cash flows.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The audited financial statements and an index thereto commences on the index to the financial statements.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A.CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The term “disclosure controls and procedures” is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the
“Exchange Act.” These rules refer to the controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that the information required to
be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the required time periods. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is accumulated and communicated to management, including our chief executive
officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. It is management’s responsibility to
establish and maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company.

Our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end
of the period covered by this report, and they have concluded that, as of June 30, 2012, there were no material deficiencies.
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The certification required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as exhibits 31.01 and 31.02 , respectively, to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. These rules refer to the controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting includes these policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management
and directors; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of the end of the period covered by this report. Our evaluation was based on the criteria for smaller public companies set
forth in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
Based on our evaluation under those criteria, our management concluded that, as of June 30, 2012, our internal control over financial reporting is
not effective due to the significant deficiencies described below.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those responsible for oversight of the company's financial reporting.  Our
management has identified the following significant deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting:

 ● Inadequate segregation of duties consistent  with control objectives; and
 ● Ineffective controls over periodic financial disclosures and reporting processes.
 
The aforementioned significant deficiencies were identified by our Chief Financial Officer and these matters were communicated to management.
We believe the following planned action will be sufficient to remediate the significant deficiency described above:
 
 ● We have engaged an independent public accounting firm to perform a qualified, independent review over all significant transactions

included in our financial reports as well as our period end financial disclosures included in our periodic filings.
 
Management believes the actions described above will remediate the significant deficiencies we have identified and strengthen our internal control
over financial reporting.  Our management intends to substantially complete these identified remedial actions during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013.

This annual assessment does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial
reporting. Management’s assessment was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission that permit us to provide only management’s report in this annual report.
 
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2012, that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Limitations on the Effectiveness of Internal Controls

There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of internal control over financial reporting, such as resource constraints,
judgments used in decision-making, assumptions about the likelihood of future events, the possibility of human error and the risk of fraud.
Accordingly, even an effective system of internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to the
preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Moreover,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness in future periods are subject to the risk that controls may be inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate over time. Our management, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, do not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial
reporting are or will be capable of preventing or detecting all errors or fraud.

ITEM 9B.OTHER INFORMATION

The following information should have been reported on a Form 8-K under Item 1.01, “Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement” during the
preceding fiscal year:

 1) The Company entered into a Consulting and Confidentiality Agreement with James Eagan, dated December 1, 2010, engaging Mr.
Eagan to provide certain consulting services to the Company.  The term of the agreement expires on November 30, 2013.  Mr. Eagan
shall receive a monthly consulting fee of $14,000.  Mr. Eagan was issued 150,000 shares of common stock in the Company upon the
execution of this agreement (not yet issued), and will receive an additional 100,000 shares of common stock in the Company upon the
6-month anniversary of the execution date of the agreement.  Mr. Eagan was granted 600,000 stock options, which vest pursuant to the
terms therein, and rights to receive an additional 1,250,000 stock options (not yet issued) on the first anniversary of the execution date
of the agreement.  In the event Mr. Eagan is terminated without cause, he will receive the full amount of compensation due through the
expiration of this agreement.  The agreement also contains customary provisions regarding confidentiality of the Company’s
proprietary information, indemnification and non-competition;

 2) The Company entered into a Consulting and Confidentiality Agreement with Herbert C. Reedman, Jr., dated April 15, 2011, engaging
Mr. Reedman to provide certain consulting services to the Company.  The term of the agreement expires on April 15, 2014.  Mr.
Reedman shall receive a monthly consulting fee of $14,000.  Mr. Reedman was issued 150,000 shares of common stock in the
Company upon the execution of this agreement (not yet issued), and will receive an additional 100,000 shares of common stock in the
Company upon the 6-month anniversary of the execution date of the agreement.  Mr. Reedman was granted 600,000 stock options,
which vest pursuant to the terms therein, and rights to receive an additional 1,250,000 stock options (not yet issued) on the first
anniversary of the execution date of the agreement.  In the event Mr. Reedman is terminated without cause, he will receive the full
amount of compensation due through the expiration of this agreement.  The agreement also contains customary provisions regarding
confidentiality of the Company’s proprietary information, indemnification and non-competition;

 3) The Company entered into a Consulting and Confidentiality Agreement with Stephen Neu, dated June 1, 2011, engaging Mr. Neu to
provide certain consulting services to the Company.  The term of the agreement expires on June 1, 2014.  Mr. Neu shall receive a
monthly consulting fee of $14,000.  Mr. Neu was issued 150,000 shares of common stock in the Company upon the execution of this
agreement (not yet issued), and will receive an additional 100,000 shares of common stock in the Company upon the 6-month
anniversary of the execution date of the agreement.  Mr. Neu was granted 600,000 stock options, which vest pursuant to the terms
therein, and rights to receive an additional 1,250,000 stock options (not yet issued) on the first anniversary of the execution date of the
agreement.  In the event Mr. Neu is terminated without cause, he will receive the full amount of compensation due through the
expiration of this agreement.  The agreement also contains customary provisions regarding confidentiality of the Company’s
proprietary information, indemnification and non-competition; and
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 4) The Company entered into a Consulting and Confidentiality Agreement with Paul MacKenzie, dated June 1, 2011, engaging Mr.

MacKenzie to provide certain consulting services to the Company.  The term of the agreement expires on June 1, 2014.  Mr.
MacKenzie shall receive a monthly consulting fee of $12,000.  Mr. MacKenzie was issued 112,500 shares of common stock in the
Company upon the execution of this agreement, and will receive an additional 75,000 shares of common stock in the Company upon
the 6-month anniversary of the execution date of the agreement.  Mr. MacKenzie was granted 450,000 stock options, which vest
pursuant to the terms therein, and rights to receive an additional 1,000,000 stock options (not yet issued) on the first anniversary of the
execution date of the agreement.  In the event Mr. MacKenzie is terminated without cause, he will receive the full amount of
compensation due through the expiration of this agreement.  The agreement also contains customary provisions regarding
confidentiality of the Company’s proprietary information, indemnification and non-competition.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our Company has a Board of Directors that is currently comprised of four members.  Each director holds office until the next annual meeting of
shareholders or until a successor is elected or appointed.  The members of the Board and the named executive officers of our Company and their
respective age and position are as follows:

 
Name

 
Age

 
Position with Company

Director of
Company Since

    
William S. Robinson 55 Director, Chairman, CEO and Treasurer February 1996
    
William A. Ince 61 Director, President, Secretary and Chief Financial Officer February 1996
    
James Eagan 49 Director January 2011
    
Herbert C. Reedman 59 Director May 2011

William Robinson
(Chairman, CEO and Treasurer)

As a co-founder of our Company (since 1996), Mr. Robinson has been responsible since the inception of Integral for securing funding in order
to ensure the ongoing operations of Integral and its subsidiaries.  Together with Mr. Ince, he has been responsible for the development and
implementation of corporate strategies.

Mr. Robinson brings many years of management experience in finance, banking and corporate development.  Previously, he acted as a director of
a number of companies involved in natural resources, sales and marketing, and computer technologies

William A. Ince
(Director, President, Secretary and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Ince, a co-founder of our Company (since 1996), is responsible, along with Mr. Robinson, for the development and implementation of
corporate strategies.  He is also responsible for the accounting and financial systems and record-keeping of Integral and its subsidiaries.

Mr. Ince brings with him a background as a professional accountant and experience from management positions in finance and operations in
several private companies.  He has consulted to both private and public companies in the areas of marketing and finance, as well as turn-around
situations.  Mr. Ince has been responsible for “team building” efforts to ensure that each project is brought to fruition on a timely basis.

James Eagan
(Director)

James Eagan is a former satellite telecommunications executive and a co-founder of ORBCOMM LLC. He led pioneering efforts in the mobile
satellite industry where he was responsible for launching low cost satellite services in North America and Asia Pacific. Prior to ORBCOMM,
Mr. Eagan was with Lockheed Martin and started his career as a naval officer. He is a graduate of the University of California Los Angeles and
received his MBA from George Washington University.
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Herbert C. Reedman
(Director)

A 40 year automotive veteran, Mr. Reedman was co-founder and Managing Partner of Vantage4, LLC a marketing and consulting firm to the
automotive industry. Prior to Vantage4 he headed operations for Reedman World Auto Center, a position he held until his retirement in 2005.
During his tenure in the automotive industry Mr. Reedman participated on numerous outside advisory boards including advisory boards for
Jaguar Cars, Ford Motor Company, General Motors Corporation, GM Credit Card, General Motors New Product Development Committee, GM
CRM Board, XM Satellite Radio and OnStar.

Non-Executive Officer / Significant Consultant

Mohamed Zeidan-
(Consultant)

On August 10, 2009 our Company retained the consulting services of Mr. Zeidan. Mr. Zeidan has over 25 years of experience in automotive
engineering and engineering management. Mr. Zeidan was the Chief Technology Officer and Director of Hybrid Engineering at Lear, creating the
Hybrid Engineering Department that developed innovative technologies resulting in major business growth. Prior to Lear, he worked at United
Technologies Automotive (“UTA”) for nearly 14 years in Advanced Engineering for many Global OEM programs-from Advance Phase through
Production Launch, being the complete life cycle of the technology.

Mr. Zeidan and his team identify partners for joint development of our customers’ products utilizing ElectriPlast® and take it through product
implementation, including prototype testing to secure technology approval and validation, and secure awarding of contracts. The Company is
currently negotiating a renewal of Mr. Zeidan’s consulting agreement.
 
Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert Disclosure

Our Company does not have a separately-designated standing audit committee at this time because it is not required to do so.  Accordingly, we do
not have an audit committee financial expert.

Code of Ethics

On September 20, 2004, the Board of Directors established a written code of ethics that applies to each of our senior executive officers, and the
code of ethics is incorporated by reference as an exhibit to this annual report.  In addition, a copy of the code of ethics is posted on our
Company’s website at www.itkg.net.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance (update)

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our Company's officers and directors, and persons who own more than 10% of a
registered class of our Company's equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).  Officers, directors, and greater than 10% shareholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all
Section 16(a) forms they file.  Based solely on our review of copies of such reports received or written representations from certain reporting
persons, we believe that, during the year ended June 30, 2012, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our officers, directors and ten
percent shareholders were timely complied with by such persons, except for the following:  (1) William S. Robinson filed a late Form 4 on
September 27, 2010 regarding the acquisition of 500,000 options for the purchase of Common Stock that were granted on July 14, 2009; (2)
William A. Ince filed a late Form 4 on September 27, 2010 regarding the acquisition of 500,000 options for the purchase of Common Stock on
July 14, 2009; and (3) Richard P. Blumberg, a 10% security holder, filed a late Form 3 on June 28, 2010 relating to the acquisition of Common
Stock on December 9, 2009.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following information discloses all plan and non-plan compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid to our executive officers, and other
individuals for whom disclosure is required, for all services rendered in all such capacities to Integral and our subsidiaries.

Summary Compensation Table
 
The following table sets forth all compensation, including bonuses, stock option awards and other payments, paid or accrued by Integral and/or
its subsidiaries, to or for Integral’s principal executive officer and each of the other executive officers (one person) and one non-executive officer,
during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
 

Name and
Principal
Position

Fiscal
Year

Ended
June

30  Salary ($)  
Bonus

($)   
Stock

Awards   

Options
Awards
($) (n2)   

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

($)   

Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings ($)   

All Other
Compensation

($) (n3)   Total ($)  
          (n1)                
William S. 2012  $ 220,000   -0-  $ -0-  $ -0-   -0-   -0-  $ 28, 271  $ 248,271 
Robinson 2011  $ 220,000   -0-  $ -0-  $ -0-   -0-   -0-  $ 28, 271  $ 248,271 
Chief
Executive
Officer,
Treasurer,
Chairman,
Director

             
    

            
    

                                  
William A. 2012  $ 220,000   -0-  $ -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-  $ 23,189  $ 243,189 
Ince 2011  $ 220,000   -0-  $ -0-   -0-   -0-   -0-  $ 23,189  $ 243,189 
Chief
Financial and
Accounting
Officer,
President,
Secretary,
Director                                  

(n1) Reflects dollar amount expensed by the company during applicable fiscal year for financial statement reporting purposes pursuant to
ASC 718.  ASC 718 requires the company to determine the overall value of the options as of the date of grant based upon the Black-
Scholes method of valuation, and to then expense that value over the service period over which the options become exercisable
(vest).  As a general rule, for time-in-service-based options, the company will immediately expense any option or portion thereof
which is vested upon grant, while expensing the balance on a pro rata basis over the remaining vesting term of the option.  For a
description ASC 718 and the assumptions used in determining the value of the options under the Black-Scholes model of valuation,
see the notes to the consolidated financial statements included with this report.

(n2) On July 1, 2002, Mr. Ince was granted an option to acquire 415,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $1.00 per
share.  In December 2005, the expiration date of these options was extended until December 31, 2007.  Then in June 2007, the
expiration date of these options was extended until December 31, 2010. On April 10, 2010 the expiration date of these options was
extended until July 31, 2014.

On July 14, 2009, Mr. Robinson and Mr. Ince were each granted an option to acquire 500,000 shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $0.25 per share. These options are exercisable after January 1, 2010 and expire on December 31, 2014.
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(n3) William S. Robinson and William A. Ince each own shares of Series A Preferred Stock.  A 5% dividend on the Series A Preferred

Stock is payable in cash or shares of common stock at the election of Integral.  For the year ended June 30, 2012, $10,271 was paid or
accrued for Mr. Robinson and $5,189 was paid or accrued for Mr. Ince.  For the year ended June 30, 2010, $10,271 was paid or
accrued for Mr. Robinson and $5,189 was paid or accrued for Mr. Ince.

William S. Robinson and William A. Ince each received an automobile expense allowance of $18,000 in 2012 and $18,000 in 2011.
 
Except as set forth above, no outstanding options to purchase common stock or other equity-based award granted to or held by any named
executive officer were repriced or otherwise materially modified, including extension of exercise periods, the change of vesting or forfeiture
conditions, the change or elimination of applicable performance criteria, or the change of the bases upon which returns are determined, nor was
there any waiver or modification of any specified performance target, goal or condition to payout.
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Executive Officer Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year-End
 

The following table provides certain information concerning any common stock purchase options, stock awards or equity incentive plan
awards held by each of our named executive officers that were outstanding as of June 30, 2012.
 

Option Awards  Stock Awards  

       

 

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:  

          

 

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:   

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:  

                          

Name  

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised
Options(#)
Exercisable   

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised
Options(#)

Unexercisable  

Number of
Securities

Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned

Options (#)   

Option
Exercise
Price ($)  

Option
Expiration

Date  

Number
of Shares
or Units
of Stock

That
Have Not
Vested (#)   

Market
Value of

Shares or
Units of

Stock
That

Have Not
Vested   

Number of
Unearned

Shares,
Units or

Other
Rights

That Have
Not

Vested   

Market or
Payout

Value of
Unearned

Shares,
Units or

Other
Rights

That Have
Not

Vested  
                          
William S.

Robinson
(n1)   500,000   0   0  $ 0.25 12/31/2014   0   0   0   0 

                                  
William A.

Ince (n2)   415,000   0   0  $ 1.00 7/31/2014   0   0   0   0 
   500,000   0   0  $ 0.25 12/31/2014                 

(n1) Mr. Robinson holds the following options: On July 14, 2009 Mr. Robinson was granted an option to acquire 500,000 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $0.25 per share. These options are exercisable after January 1, 2010 and expire on December
31, 2014.

(n2) Mr. Ince holds the following options:  On July 1, 2002, Mr. Ince was granted an option to acquire 415,000 shares of common stock
at an exercise price of $1.00 per share.  In June 2007, the expiration date of these options was extended until December 31, 2010 and
on April 10, 2010 the expiration date of these options was extended to July 31, 2014. On July 14, 2009 Mr. Ince was granted an
option to acquire 500,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.25 per share. These options are exercisable after January
1, 2010 and expire on December 31, 2014.

 
Compensation of Directors

The following table sets forth all compensation, including bonuses, stock option awards and other payments, paid or accrued by Integral and/or
its subsidiaries, to or for Integral’s Directors during the last completed fiscal years ended June 30, 2012.
 

Name  

Fees
Earned or

Paid in
Cash ($)   

Stock
Awards

($)   

Options
Awards

($)   

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

($)   

Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings ($)   

All Other
Compensation

($)   Total ($)  
                      
James Eagan   168,000                       168,000 
 

        
    

            
    

                             
Herbert C.

Reedman   168,000                       168,000 
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Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

On August 1, 2009 the Board of Directors deemed it in the best interest of the Company to enter into employment agreements with William S.
Robinson, its Chief Executive Officer and Treasurer, and William A. Ince, its President and Accounting Officer, respectively.

The term of Mr. Robinson’s agreement is from August 1, 2009 through to July 31, 2014. The agreement calls for a compensation package of
$220,000 annually for services and $1,500 per month for an automobile allowance. In addition, Integral has granted Mr. Robinson options to
acquire 500,000 shares of Integral’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.25 per share. These options fully vested on August 1, 2009 and
may be exercised in whole or in part at any time. All options shall expire on December 31, 2014.  The agreement also contains customary
provisions regarding confidentiality of the Company’s proprietary information and non-competition.

The term of Mr. Ince’s agreement is from August 1, 2009 through to July 31, 2014. The agreement calls for a compensation package of
$220,000 annually for services and $1,500 per month for an automobile allowance. In addition, Integral has granted Mr. Ince options to acquire
500,000 shares of Integral’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.25 per share. These options fully vested on August 1, 2009 and may be
exercised in whole or in part at any time. All options shall expire on December 31, 2014.  The agreement also contains customary provisions
regarding confidentiality of the Company’s proprietary information and non-competition.

In the event of termination without cause, both Mr. Robinson and Mr. Ince are respectively entitled to one year’s compensation as severance.

Integral’s Board of Directors has complete discretion as to the appropriateness of (a) key-man life insurance, (b) obtaining officer and director
liability insurance, (c) employment contracts with and compensation of executive officers and directors, (d) indemnification contracts, and (e)
incentive plan to award executive officers and key employees.

Integral’s Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing and determining the annual salary and other compensation of the executive officers
and key employees of Integral.  The goals of Integral are to align compensation and performance with business objectives of the Company and
to enable Integral to attract, retain and reward executive officers and other key employees who contribute to the long-term success of
Integral.  Integral intends to provide base salaries to its executive officers and key employees sufficient to provide motivation to achieve certain
operating goals.  Although salaries are not specifically tied into performance criteria, incentive bonuses may be available to certain executive
officers and key employees.  In the future, executive compensation may include without limitation cash bonuses, stock option grants and stock
reward grants.
 
 

23



 
 
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Common Stock

The following table sets forth, as of August 27, 2012 the stock ownership of each person known by Integral to be the beneficial owner of five
percent or more of Integral’s common stock, each director and executive officer individually and all directors and executive officers of Integral
as a group.  Each person is believed to have sole voting and investment power over the shares except as noted.

Name and Address of
Beneficial Owner (n1)  

Amount and Nature of Beneficial
Ownership(n1)   Percent of Class (n3)  

Executive Officers and Directors:       
William S. Robinson (n4)
#3 1070 West Pender St.
Vancouver, B.C.  V6E 2N7   3,196,383 (n2)   4.8 %
William A. Ince  (n5)
805 W. Orchard Dr., Suite #7
Bellingham, WA  98225   2,728,954 (n2)   4.2 %
All executive officers and directors as a group   5,925,337    9.0 %
         
Richard P. Blumberg   7,731,142 (n6)   11.7 %
         

 
(n1) Unless otherwise indicated, all shares are directly beneficially owned and investing power is held by the persons named.

(n2) Includes vested options beneficially owned but not yet exercised and outstanding, if any.  The table does not include the effects of
conversion by Mr. Robinson and Mr. Ince of their shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A”), which are
convertible into shares of common stock at a conversion rate that varies with the market price of the common stock at the time of
conversion.  The conversion rate is determined by dividing the number of shares of Series A being converted by the average of the
high and low bid prices of Integral’s common stock reported by the OTC Bulletin Board over the ten trading days preceding the date
of conversion.  Mr. Robinson owns 204,975 shares of Series A and Mr. Ince owns 103,563 shares of Series A.  As of August 27,
2012, the conversion rate was $0.50 per share, so Mr. Robinson’s 204,975 shares of Series A were convertible into 585,643 shares
of common stock, and Mr. Ince’s 103,563 shares of Series A were convertible into 295,894 shares of common stock.  The actual
number of shares of common stock receivable by Mr. Robinson and Ince upon conversion of the Series A would depend on the
actual conversion rate in effect at the time of conversion.

  
(n3) Based upon 65,564,470 shares issued and outstanding, plus the amount of shares each person or group has the right to acquire

within 60 days pursuant to options, warrants, conversion privileges or other rights.

(n4) Mr. Robinson is an executive officer and director of Integral and each of its subsidiaries.  Beneficial ownership figure includes an
aggregate of 150,000 shares held in the names of his spouse and his two minor children and 500,000 underlying options.

(n5) Mr. Ince is an executive officer and director of Integral and each of its subsidiaries. Beneficial ownership figure includes 915,000
shares underlying options.
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(n6) Based on information contained in Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 5, 2012, filed by Richard P. Blumberg whose

address is 2357 Hobart Ave. S.W., Seattle, WA 98116. Richard P. Blumberg has sole voting power with respect to 4,940,667 and
has shared voting power over 2,790,475 shares.

 
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

The following table sets forth, as of August 27, 2012, the stock ownership of each person known by Integral to be the beneficial owner of five
percent or more of Integral’s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, each Officer and Director individually and all Directors and Officers of
Integral as a group. Each person is believed to have sole voting and investment power over the shares except as noted.

Name and Address of
Beneficial Owner (n1)  

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership(n1)   Percent of Class (n2)  

William S. Robinson (n3) –
#3 1070 West Pender St.
Vancouver, B.C.  V6E 2N7   204,975    66.4 %
William A. Ince (n4) –
805 W. Orchard Dr., Suite #7
Bellingham, WA  98225   103,563    33.6 %

All officers and directors of Integral as a group (2 persons)   308,538    100 %
 
(n1) Unless otherwise indicated, all shares are directly beneficially owned and investing power is held by the persons named.

(n2) Based upon 308,538 Series A Convertible Preferred shares issued and outstanding.

(n3) Mr. Robinson is an executive officer and director of Integral and each of its subsidiaries.

(n4) Mr. Ince is an executive officer and director of Integral and each of its subsidiaries.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following information concerning the Company’s equity compensation plans is as of the end of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011:

 
 
 
 
 
 

Plan category  

Number of securities to be
issued upon exercise of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

 
 

(a)   

Weighted-average
exercise price of options,

warrants and rights
 
 
 

(b)   

Number of securities
available for future issuance
under equity compensation
plans (excluding securities

reflected in column (a))
 

(c)  
Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders     N/A      N/A      N/A  
Equity compensation plans not approved by security

holders   6,500,000   $ 0.40      2,500,000  
 
Total   6,500,000   $ 0.40    2,500,500  

As of June 30, 2012, Integral has three Employee Benefit and Consulting Services Compensation Plans (the “Plans”) in effect.

On January 2, 2001, Integral adopted an employee benefit and consulting services compensation plan entitled the Integral Technologies, Inc.
2001 Stock Plan (the “2001 Plan”), which was amended on December 17, 2001.  As amended, the 2001 Plan covers up to 3,500,000 shares of
common stock.  The 2001 Plan has not previously been approved by security holders.

On April 4, 2003, Integral adopted an employee benefit and consulting services compensation plan entitled the Integral Technologies, Inc. 2003
Stock Plan (the “2003 Plan”).  The 2003 Plan covers up to 1,500,000 shares of common stock.  The 2003 Plan has not previously been
approved by security holders.

On July 14, 2009, Integral adopted an employee benefit and consulting services compensation plan entitled the Integral Technologies, Inc. 2009
Stock Plan (the “2009 Plan”).  The 2009 Plan covers up to 4,000,000 shares of common stock.  The 2009 Plan has not previously been
approved by security holders.

Under all three Plans, Integral may issue common stock and/or options to purchase common stock to certain officers, directors and employees
and consultants of Integral and its subsidiaries.  The purpose of the Plans is to promote the best interests of Integral and its shareholders by
providing a means of non-cash remuneration to eligible participants who contribute to operating progress and earning power of Integral.  The
Plans are administered by Integral's Board of Directors or a committee thereof which has the discretion to determine from time to time the
eligible participants to receive an award; the number of shares of stock issuable directly or to be granted pursuant to option; the price at which
the option may be exercised or the price per share in cash or cancellation of fees or other payment which Integral or its subsidiaries is liable if a
direct issue of stock and all other terms on which each option shall be granted.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Since the beginning of the last fiscal year, we have not entered into any transactions in which our officers and directors have a material interest,
or that would otherwise be deemed a related-party transaction under the rules of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Our Board of Directors is comprised of four members, William S. Robinson, William A. Ince, James Eagan and Herbert C. Reedman. Mr.
Robinson and Mr. Ince also serve executive officers of the Company.  We do not have any independent directors.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Our Company’s board of directors reviews and approves audit and permissible non-audit services performed by Smythe Ratcliffe LLP,
Vancouver, Canada (“SRLLP”), as well as the fees charged by SRLLP for such services.  In its review of non-audit service fees and its
appointment of SRLLP as our Company’s independent accountants, the board of directors considered whether the provision of such services is
compatible with maintaining SRLLP’s independence.  All of the services provided and fees charged by SRLLP in the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012 were pre-approved by the board of directors.
 
Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by SRLLP for the audit of our annual financial statements and the reviews of the
financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q during fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were $67,200 and
$66,250, respectively.

Audit-Related Fees

There were no other fees billed by SRLLP during the last two fiscal years that were reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review
of our Company’s financial statements and not reported under “Audit Fees” above.

Tax Fees

There were no fees billed for professional services rendered by SRLLP for tax compliance services in fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

All Other Fees

There were no other fees billed by SRLLP during the last two fiscal years for products and services provided by SRLLP.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS
 
Exhibit No. Description

3.03 Articles of Incorporation, as amended and currently in effect.  (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.03 of Integral’s quarterly
report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended March 31, 2006.)

3.04 Bylaws, as amended and restated on December 31, 1997.  (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.04 of Integral’s quarterly
report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended March 31, 2006.)

10.12 Integral Technologies, Inc. 2001 Stock Plan dated January 2, 2001, as amended December 17, 2001. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.12 of Integral’s registration statement on Form S-8 (file no. 333-76058).)

10.15 Integral Technologies, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan dated April 4, 2003 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of Integral’s
registration statement on Form S-8 (file no. 333-104522).)

10.18 Grant of Option dated June 17, 2005 between Integral and Thomas Aisenbrey. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of
Integral’s Current Report Form 8-K dated June 17, 2005 (filed June 23, 2005).)

10.19 Agreement between the Company and The QuanStar Group, LLC dated June 20, 2005. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.18 of Integral’s Current Report Form 8-K dated June 17, 2005 (filed June 23, 2005).)

10.20 Patent License Agreement between the Company and Heatron, Inc. dated March 17, 2006. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.20 of Integral’s Current Report Form 8-K dated March 17, 2006 (filed April 11, 2006).)

10.21 Patent License Agreement between the Company and Jasper Rubber Products, Inc. dated August 25, 2006. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 of Integral’s Current Report Form 8-K dated August 25, 2006 (filed September 19, 2006).)

10.22 Grant of Option dated November 6, 2006 between Integral and Thomas Aisenbrey. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22
of Integral’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended September 30, 2006.)

10.23 Manufacturing Agreement between Integral and Jasper Rubber Products, Inc. dated November 22, 2006. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.23 of Integral’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 27, 2006 (filed December 4, 2006).)

10.24 Patent License Agreement between Integral and ADAC Plastics, Inc. d/b/a ADAC Automotive, dated November 28, 2006.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 of Integral’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 18, 2006 (filed December
20, 2006).)

10.25 Patent License Agreement between Integral and Esprit Solutions Limited, dated December 18, 2006. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.25 of Integral’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 9, 2007 (filed January 19, 2007).)

10.26 Patent License Agreement between Integral and Knowles Electronics, LLC, dated January 18, 2007. (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.26 of Integral’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended December 31, 2006.)
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10.27 Agreement between Integral and Visionary Innovations, Inc., dated February 16, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.27 of Integral’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the period ended March 31, 2007.)

10.28 Amendment One to Manufacturing Agreement between Integral and Jasper Rubber Products, Inc. dated July 19, 2007.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 of Integral’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 19, 2007 (filed July 30, 2007).)

10.29 Integral Technologies, Inc. 2009 Stock Option Plan dated July 14, 2009. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 of
Integral’s Current Report on Form 10-KSB dated September 29, 2009 (filed September 29, 2009)) .

10.30 Employment Agreement between Integral and William Robinson dated July 14, 2009. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.30 of Integral’s Current Report on Form 10-KSB dated September 29, 2009 (filed September 29, 2009)).

10.31 Employment Agreement between Integral and William Ince dated July 14, 2009. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 of
Integral’s Current Report on Form 10-KSB dated September 29, 2009 (filed September 29, 2009)).

10.32 Consulting Agreement between Integral and Mohamed Zeidan dated August 10, 2009. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.32 of Integral’s Current Report on Form 10-KSB dated September 29, 2009 (filed September 29, 2009)).

10.33 Consulting Agreement between Integral and James Eagan dated December 1, 2010. .

10.34 Consulting Agreement between Integral and Herbert C. Reedman dated April 15, 2011. .

10.35 Consulting Agreement between Integral and Stephen Neu dated June 1, 2011. .

10.36 Consulting Agreement between Integral and Paul MacKenzie dated June 1, 2011. .

14.1 Code of Ethics adopted September 20, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 of Integral’s annual report on Form 10-
KSB for the period ended June 30, 2004.)

21.4 List of Subsidiaries. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.4 of Integral’s annual report on Form 10-KSB for the period ended
June 30, 2004.)

31.1 Section 302 Certification by the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer.  (Filed herewith).

31.2 Section 302 Certification by the Corporation’s Chief Financial Officer.  (Filed herewith).

32.1 Section 906 Certification by the Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer.  (Filed herewith).

32.2 Section 906 Certification by the Corporation’s Chief Financial Officer.  (Filed herewith).
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Company caused this Report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC  
   
Dated:  September 28, 2012 /s/ William S. Robinson  
 William S. Robinson, Chief Executive Officer  
   
 /s/ William A. Ince  
 William A. Ince, Chief Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer
 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name  Title Date
    
/s/ William S. Robinson  Director September 28, 2012
William S. Robinson    
    
/s/ William A. Ince  Director September 28, 2012
William A. Ince    
 
 

31



 
 
INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 
Index Page
  
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
  
Consolidated Financial Statements  
  
Consolidated Balance Sheets F-2
  
Consolidated Statements of Operations F-3
  
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) F-4 – F-10
  
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows F-11
  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-12 – F - 39

 
 



 
 

 
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

TO THE DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Integral Technologies, Inc. (a development stage company) as of June 30,
2012 and June 30, 2011 and the consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity (deficit) and cash flows for each of the years
ended June 30, 2012, June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010, and the cumulative totals for the development stage of operations for the period from
February 12, 1996 (inception) to June 30, 2012. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States of
America).  Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.  Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years ended June 30, 2012,
June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010, and the cumulative totals for the development stage of operations for the period from February 12, 1996
(inception) to June 30, 2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern.  As
discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has no revenues and limited capital, which together raise substantial
doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.  Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in note 2.  These
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
 
/s/ Smythe Ratcliffe LLP
 
Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, Canada
September 27, 2012
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30
(US Dollars)
 
 

  2012   2011  
       
Assets       
       
Current       

Cash  $ 172,173  $ 61,365 
Prepaid expense   19,723   0 

         
Total Assets  $ 191,896  $ 61,365 
         
Liabilities         
         
Current         

Accounts payable and accruals (note 11)  $ 2,032,309  $ 775,747 
Promissory note payable (note 6)   123,696   0 
Convertible debenture (note 5)   93,356   0 
Derivative financial liability (note 5)   84,718   0 

         
Total Liabilities   2,334,079   775,747 
         
Stockholders’ Deficit (note 4)         
         
Preferred Stock and Paid-in Capital in Excess of $0.001 Par Value      

20,000,000 shares authorized 308,538 issued and outstanding   308,538   308,538 
Common Stock and Paid-in Capital in Excess of $0.001 Par Value      

150,000,000 shares authorized 65,564,470 (June 30, 2011 - 58,296,760) issued and outstanding   37,655,315   35,858,822 
Promissory Notes Receivable   (29,737)   (29,737)
Subscriptions Received   191,600   0 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income   46,267   46,267 
Deficit Accumulated During the Development Stage   (40,314,166)   (36,898,272)
         
Total Stockholders’ Deficit   (2,142,183)   (714,382)
         
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit  $ 191,896  $ 61,365 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(US Dollars)

           Period From  
           February 12, 1996 
           (Inception)  
  Years Ended June 30,   Through  
  2012   2011   2010   June 30, 2012  
             
Revenue  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 249,308 
Cost of Sales   0   0   0   216,016 
                 
   0   0   0   33,292 
Other Income   103   797   2,899   869,406 
                 
   103   797   2,899   902,698 
                 
Expenses                 

Consulting (note 4(c))   1,759,230   1,682,959   1,374,060   11,367,855 
Salaries   440,000   440,000   872,027   11,439,316 
Legal and accounting   345,980   192,295   199,263   5,141,297 
Research and development   238,955   245,593   250,826   2,206,337 
General and administrative   203,788   89,805   95,554   1,571,971 
Travel and entertainment   137,798   105,546   62,034   1,662,658 
Rent   75,720   50,454   46,631   660,475 
Bank charges and interest, net   73,488   910   1,993   281,679 
Fair value loss on derivative financial liability   89,326   0   0   89,326 
Telephone   25,000   27,908   24,382   536,585 
Advertising   11,252   6,612   5,866   356,591 
Write-down of license and operating assets   0   0   0   1,855,619 
Write-off of investments   0   0   0   1,250,000 
Non-competition agreement   0   0   0   711,000 
Interest on beneficial conversion feature   0   0   0   566,455 
Financing fees, net   0   0   0   129,043 
Bad debts   0   0   0   46,604 
Settlement of lawsuit   0   0   0   45,250 
Depreciation and amortization   0   0   0   324,386 

                 
   3,400,537   2,842,082   2,932,636   40,242,447 
                 
Net and Comprehensive Loss for Period  $ (3,400,434)  $ (2,841,285)  $ (2,929,737)  $ (39,339,749)
                 
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share (note 10)  $ (0.06)  $ (0.05)  $ (0.06)     
                 
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding   59,780,612   56,487,578   51,520,654     
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
(US Dollars)

     Common      Preferred            Deficit     

  Shares   Stock and   
Shares

of   Stock and         Accumulated   Accumulated     

  
of

Common   Paid-in Capital  Preferred  Paid-in Capital  Promissory     Other   During the   Total  
  Stock   in Excess   Stock   in Excess   Notes   Share   Comprehensive  Development   Stockholders'  
  Issued   of Par   Issued   of Par   Receivable   Subscriptions  Income   Stage   Equity (Deficit) 
                            
Shares Issued

for                            
Cash   1,000,000  $ 10,000   0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 10,000 
Property and

equipment
(to officers
and
directors)   1,500,000   15,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   15,000 

Services
(provided
by officers
and
directors)   2,000,000   20,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   20,000 

Services
(other)   1,500,000   15,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   15,000 

Foreign
currency
translation   0   0   0   0   0   0   (1,226)  0   (1,226)

Net loss for
period   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (344,843)  (344,843)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 1996   6,000,000   60,000   0   0   0   0   (1,226)  (344,843)  (286,069)
Shares Issued

for                                     
Cash   5,086,000   865,514   0   0   0   0   0   0   865,514 
Share issue

costs   0   (48,920)  0   0   0   0   0   0   (48,920)
Services   564,000   63,036   0   0   0   0   0   0   63,036 
Acquisition

of
subsidiary   100,000   275,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   275,000 

Foreign
currency
translation   0   0   0   0   0   0   12,601   0   12,601 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (822,217)  (822,217)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 1997   11,750,000   1,214,630   0   0   0   0   11,375   (1,167,060)  58,945 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Cash   825,396   650,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   650,000 
Share issue

costs   0   (78,000)  0   0   0   0   0   0   (78,000)
Foreign

currency
translation   0   0   0   0   0   0   24,860   0   24,860 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (937,373)  (937,373)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 1998   12,575,396  $ 1,786,630   0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 36,235  $ (2,104,433) $ (281,568)
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
(US Dollars)

     Common      Preferred            Deficit     

  Shares of   Stock and   
Shares

of   Stock and         Accumulated   Accumulated     
  Common   Paid-in Capital  Preferred  Paid-in Capital  Promissory     Other   During the   Total  
  Stock   in Excess   Stock   in Excess   Notes   Share   Comprehensive  Development   Stockholders'  
  Issued   of Par   Issued   of Par   Receivable   Subscriptions  Income   Stage   Equity (Deficit) 
                            
Balance, June

30, 1998   12,575,396  $ 1,786,630   0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 36,235  $ (2,104,433) $ (281,568)
Shares Issued

for                                     
Cash   200,000   50,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   50,000 
Exercise of

stock
options   445,000   80,500   0   0   0   0   0   0   80,500 

Promissory
note   1,683,789   252,568   0   0   (284,068)  0   0   0   (31,500)

Settlement of
lawsuit   150,000   15,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   15,000 

Services
(provided
by officers
and
directors)   666,666   100,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   100,000 

Share issue
costs   0   (100,500)  0   0   0   0   0   0   (100,500)

Services   250,000   50,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   50,000 
Conversion

of
convertible
debentures   3,869,120   525,813   0   0   0   0   0   0   525,813 

Acquisition
of
subsidiary   1,800,000   619,200   0   0   0   0   0   0   619,200 

Held in
escrow   447,091   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 

Stock-based
compensation  0   70,600   0   0   0   0   0   0   70,600 

Beneficial
conversion
feature   0   566,456   0   0   0   0   0   0   566,456 

Foreign
currency
translation   0   0   0   0   0   0   8,444   0   8,444 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (1,404,021)  (1,404,021)

                                     
Balance June

30, 1999   22,087,062   4,016,267   0   0   (284,068)  0   44,679   (3,508,454)  268,424 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Cash on

private
placement   2,650,000   3,975,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   3,975,000 

Exercise of
options   1,245,000   256,700   0   0   0   0   0   0   256,700 

Services   50,000   13,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   13,000 
Settlement of

debt   0   0   664,410   664,410   0   0   0   0   664,410 
Shares released

from escrow   0   75,558   0   0   0   0   0   0   75,558 
Stock-based

compensation  0   48,256   0   0   0   0   0   0   48,256 
Promissory

note
repayment   0   0   0   0   225,568   0   0   0   225,568 

Foreign
currency
translation   0   0   0   0   0   0   1,614   0   1,614 



translation   0   0   0   0   0   0   1,614   0   1,614 
Net loss for

year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (1,537,402)  (1,537,402)
                                     
Balance, June

30, 2000   26,032,062  $ 8,384,781   664,410  $ 664,410  $ (58,500) $ 0  $ 46,293  $ (5,045,856) $ 3,991,128 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
(US Dollars)

     Common      Preferred            Deficit     

  Shares   Stock and   
Shares

of   Stock and         Accumulated   Accumulated     

  
of

Common   Paid-in Capital  Preferred  Paid-in Capital  Promissory     Other   During the   Total  
  Stock   in Excess   Stock   in Excess   Notes   Share   Comprehensive  Development   Stockholders'  
  Issued   of Par   Issued   of Par   Receivable   Subscriptions  Income   Stage   Equity (Deficit) 
                            
Balance, June

30, 2000   26,032,062  $ 8,384,781   664,410  $ 664,410  $ (58,500) $ 0  $ 46,293  $ (5,045,856) $ 3,991,128 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Cash on

private
placement   81,885   112,480   0   0   0   0   0   0   112,480 

Exercise of
options   517,000   91,515   0   0   0   0   0   0   91,515 

Services   100,000   40,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   40,000 
Held in

escrow   218,115   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 
Stock-based

compensation  0   272,207   0   0   0   0   0   0   272,207 
Dividends on

preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (30,720)  (30,720)

Share
subscriptions   0   0   0   0   0   50,000   0   0   50,000 

Redemption of
preferred
stock   0   0   (100,000)  (100,000)  0   0   0   (100,000)  (200,000)

Foreign
currency
translation   0   0   0   0   0   0   (26)  0   (26)

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (4,000,169)  (4,000,169)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2001   26,949,062   8,900,983   564,410   564,410   (58,500)  50,000   46,267   (9,176,745)  326,415 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Proprietary

non-
competition
agreement   450,000   711,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   711,000 

Held in
escrow   700,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 

Exercise of
options   2,263,500   971,200   0   0   (15,000)  (10,000)  0   0   946,200 

Exercise of
warrants   325,000   130,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   130,000 

Subscriptions  100,000   40,000   0   0   0   (40,000)  0   0   0 
Stock-based

compensation  0   415,685   0   0   0   0   0   0   415,685 
Shares released

from escrow   0   954,582   0   0   0   0   0   0   954,582 
Dividends on

preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (26,087)  (26,087)

Redemption of
preferred
stock   0   0   (124,800)  (124,800)  0   0   0   (187,200)  (312,000)

Write-off of
promissory
note
receivable   0   (7,000)  0   0   7,000   0   0   0   0 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (3,836,191)  (3,836,191)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2002



30, 2002   30,787,562  $ 12,116,450   439,610  $ 439,610  $ (66,500) $ 0  $ 46,267  $ (13,226,223) $ (690,396)
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
(US Dollars)

     Common      Preferred            Deficit     

  Shares   Stock and   
Shares

of   Stock and         Accumulated   Accumulated     

  
of

Common   Paid-in Capital  Preferred  Paid-in Capital  Promissory     Other   During the   Total  
  Stock   in Excess   Stock   in Excess   Notes   Share   Comprehensive  Development   Stockholders'  
  Issued   of Par   Issued   of Par   Receivable   Subscriptions  Income   Stage   Equity (Deficit) 
                            
Balance, June

30, 2002   30,787,562  $ 12,116,450   439,610  $ 439,610  $ (66,500) $ 0  $ 46,267  $ (13,226,223) $ (690,396)
Shares Issued

for                                     
Cash on

private
placement   1,684,000   842,050   0   0   0   0   0   0   842,050 

Settlement of
debt   144,793   104,542   0   0   0   0   0   0   104,542 

Services   200,000   196,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   196,000 
Exercise of

options   52,500   43,750   0   0   0   0   0   0   43,750 
Exercise of

warrants   55,000   27,500   0   0   0   0   0   0   27,500 
Subscription

received   0   0   0   0   0   176,665   0   0   176,665 
Stock-based

compensation   0   5,460   0   0   0   0   0   0   5,460 
Settlement of

lawsuit   0   0   0   0   0   35,250   0   0   35,250 
Dividends on

preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (22,060)  (22,060)

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (1,346,833)  (1,346,833)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2003   32,923,855   13,335,752   439,610   439,610   (66,500)  211,915   46,267   (14,595,116)  (628,072)
Shares Issued

for                                     
Cash on

private
placement   6,609,336   6,042,935   0   0   0   (211,915)  0   0   5,831,020 

Cash on
exercise of
options   25,000   25,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   25,000 

Settlement of
lawsuit   37,500   35,250   0   0   0   0   0   0   35,250 

Services   25,000   21,873   0   0   0   0   0   0   21,873 
Redemption

of preferred
stock   415,000   415,000   (118,572)  (118,572)  0   0   0   (296,428)  0 

Exercise of
warrants   288,298   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 

Shares returned
to treasury for
cancellation   (142,140)  0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 

Stock-based
compensation   0   321,275   0   0   0   0   0   0   321,275 

Dividends on
preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (19,016)  (19,016)

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (2,543,848)  (2,543,848)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2004   40,181,849  $ 20,197,085   321,038  $ 321,038  $ (66,500) $ 0  $ 46,267  $ (17,454,408) $ 3,043,482 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
(US Dollars)

     Common      Preferred            Deficit     

  Shares   Stock and   
Shares

of   Stock and         Accumulated   Accumulated     

  
of

Common   Paid-in Capital  Preferred  Paid-in Capital  Promissory     Other   During the   Total  
  Stock   in Excess   Stock   in Excess   Notes   Share   Comprehensive  Development   Stockholders'  
  Issued   of Par   Issued   of Par   Receivable   Subscriptions  Income   Stage   Equity (Deficit) 
                            
Balance, June

30, 2004   40,181,849  $ 20,197,085   321,038  $ 321,038  $ (66,500) $ 0  $ 46,267  $ (17,454,408) $ 3,043,482 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Settlement of

debt   44,000   55,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   55,000 
Cashless

exercise of
warrants   1,713,300   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 

Services   500,000   270,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   270,000 
Redemption of

preferred
stock   0   0   (12,500)  (12,500)  0   0   0   (37,500)  (50,000)

Dividends on
preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (15,739)  (15,739)

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (1,812,265)  (1,812,265)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2005   42,439,149   20,522,085   308,538   308,538   (66,500)  0   46,267   (19,319,912)  1,490,478 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Exercise of

options   200,000   134,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   134,000 
Cashless

exercise of
warrants   35,115   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   0 

Services   269,000   191,510   0   0   0   0   0   0   191,510 
Exercise of

warrants   1,291,168   1,080,669   0   0   0   0   0   0   1,080,669 
Repayment of

promissory
note   0   0   0   0   34,000   0   0   0   34,000 

Dividends on
preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (15,427)  (15,427)

Stock-based
compensation  0   107,219   0   0   0   0   0   0   107,219 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (2,104,189)  (2,104,189)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2006   44,234,432   22,035,483   308,538   308,538   (32,500)  0   46,267   (21,439,528)  918,260 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Exercise of

options   50,000   35,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   35,000 
Services   50,000   105,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   105,000 
Private

placement   1,180,537   2,361,641   0   0   0   0   0   0   2,361,641 
Repayment of

promissory
note   0   0   0   0   2,763   0   0   0   2,763 

Dividends on
preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (15,427)  (15,427)

Stock-based
compensation  0   4,225,648   0   0   0   0   0   0   4,225,648 

Net loss for



Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (5,985,850)  (5,985,850)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2007   45,514,969  $ 28,762,772   308,538  $ 308,538  $ (29,737) $ 0  $ 46,267  $ (27,440,805) $ 1,647,035 
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
(US Dollars)

     Common      Preferred            Deficit     

  Shares   Stock and   
Shares

of   Stock and         Accumulated   Accumulated     

  
of

Common   Paid-in Capital  Preferred  
Paid-in
Capital   Promissory     Other   During the   Total  

  Stock   in Excess   Stock   in Excess   Notes   Share   Comprehensive  Development   Stockholders'  
  Issued   of Par   Issued   of Par   Receivable   Subscriptions  Income   Stage   Equity (Deficit) 
                            
Balance, June

30, 2007   45,514,969  $ 28,762,772   308,538  $ 308,538  $ (29,737) $ 0  $ 46,267  $ (27,440,805) $ 1,647,035 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Exercise of

warrants   190,000   208,995   0   0   0   0   0   0   208,995 
Subscriptions

received   0   0   0   0   0   276,500   0   0   276,500 
Dividends on

preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (15,427)  (15,427)

Stock-based
compensation  0   247,944   0   0   0   0   0   0   247,944 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (1,938,216)  (1,938,216)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2008   45,704,969   29,219,711   308,538   308,538   (29,737)  276,500   46,267   (29,394,448)  426,831 
Shares Issued

for                                     
Services   100,000   60,500   0   0   0   (46,500)  0   0   14,000 
Private

placement   4,500,800   1,125,200   0   0   0   (230,000)  0   0   895,200 
Dividends on

preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (15,427)  (15,427)

Stock-based
compensation  0   119,064   0   0   0   0   0   0   119,064 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (1,554,876)  (1,554,876)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2009   50,305,769   30,524,475   308,538   308,538   (29,737)  0   46,267   (30,964,751)  (115,208)
Shares Issued

for                                     
Services   270,000   81,000   0   0   0   0   0   0   81,000 
Cash   4,263,152   1,393,637   0   0   0   0   0   0   1,393,637 

Subscriptions
received   0   0   0   0   0   11,250   0   0   11,250 

Dividends on
preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (15,462)  (15,462)

Stock-based
compensation  0   1,225,151   0   0   0   0   0   0   1,225,151 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (2,929,737)  (2,929,737)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2010   54,838,921  $ 33,224,263   308,538  $ 308,538  $ (29,737) $ 11,250  $ 46,267  $ (33,909,950) $ (349,369)
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
(US Dollars)

     Common      Preferred            Deficit     

  Shares   Stock and   
Shares

of   Stock and         Accumulated   Accumulated     

  
of

Common   Paid-in Capital  Preferred  Paid-in Capital  Promissory     Other   During the   Total  
  Stock   in Excess   Stock   in Excess   Notes   Share   Comprehensive  Development   Stockholders'  
  Issued   of Par   Issued   of Par   Receivable   Subscriptions  Income   Stage   Equity (Deficit) 
                            
Balance, June

30, 2010   54,838,921  $ 33,224,263   308,538  $ 308,538  $ (29,737) $ 11,250  $ 46,267  $ (33,909,950) $ (349,369)
Shares Issued

for                                     
Services   446,118   619,284   0   0   0   0   0   0   619,284 
Cash   1,820,042   1,101,720   0   0   0   (11,250)  0   0   1,090,470 
Share issue

costs   330,879   (122,497)  0   0   0   0   0   0   (122,497)
Warrants

exercised   860,800   430,400   0   0   0   0   0   0   430,400 
Dividends on

preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (15,460)  (15,460)

Warrant
extension                                     
Deemed

dividend
(note 4(d))   0   131,577   0   0   0   0   0   (131,577)  0 

Stock-based
compensation  0   474,075   0   0   0   0   0   0   474,075 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (2,841,285)  (2,841,285)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2011   58,296,760   35,858,822   308,538   308,538   (29,737)  0   46,267   (36,898,272)  (714,382)
Shares issued

for                                     
Services   77,755   34,954   0   0   0   0   0   0   34,954 
Cash   3,364,980   1,147,915   0   0   0   0   0   0   1,147,915 
Settlement of

convertible
debenture   629,158   236,926   0   0   0   0   0   0   236,926 

Dividends on
preferred
stock   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (15,460)  (15,460)

Subscriptions
received   0   0   0   0   0   191,600   0   0   191,600 

Stock-based
compensation  0   376,698   0   0   0   0   0   0   376,698 

Net loss for
year   0   0   0   0   0   0   0   (3,400,434)  (3,400,434)

                                     
Balance, June

30, 2012   62,368,653  $ 37,655,315   308,538  $ 308,538  $ (29,737) $ 191,600  $ 46,267  $ (40,314,166) $ (2,142,183)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(US Dollars)

           Period from  
           February 12, 1996 
     (Inception)  
  Years Ended June 30,   Through  
  2012   2011   2010   June 30, 2012  
Operating Activities             

Net loss  $ (3,400,434)  $ (2,841,285)  $ (2,929,737)  $ (39,339,749)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating

activities                 
Write-down of investment   0   0   0   1,250,000 
Other income   0   0   0   (658,305)
Proprietary, non-competition agreement   0   0   0   711,000 
Consulting services and financing fees   34,954   481,803   81,000   2,135,540 
Depreciation and amortization   0   0   0   349,941 
Stock-based compensation   376,698   474,075   1,225,151   7,909,282 
Interest on derivative financial liability   55,174   0   0   55,174 
Fair value loss on derivative financial liability   89,326   0   0   89,326 
Interest on beneficial conversion feature   0   0   0   566,456 
Settlement of lawsuit   0   0   0   60,250 
Write-down of license and operating assets   0   0   0   1,853,542 
Bad debt   0   0   0   77,712 

Changes in non-cash working capital                 
Due from affiliated company   0   0   0   (116,000)
Accounts receivable   0   0   0   (109,213)
Inventory   0   0   0   (46,842)
Prepaid expenses   (19,723)   7,544   3,809   (19,722)
Deferred revenue and other   0   0   0   (2,609)
Accounts payable and accruals   1,364,798   105,858   29,894   2,419,914 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities   (1,499,207)   (1,772,005)   (1,589,883)   (22,814,303)
Investing Activities                 

Purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets   0   0   0   (200,935)
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed on purchase of subsidiary   0   0   0   (129,474)
Investment in and advances to affiliated companies   0   0   0   (2,000,000)
License agreements   0   0   0   (124,835)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities   0   0   0   (2,455,244)
Financing Activities                 

Redemption of preferred stock   0   0   0   (50,000)
Repayment of loan   0   0   0   (11,000)
Advances from stockholders   0   0   0   1,078,284 
Repayments to stockholders   0   0   0   (91,283)
Subscriptions received   191,600   0   11,250   706,015 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock   1,163,590   1,520,870   1,542,888   23,323,018 
Proceeds from convertible debentures   270,500   0   0   870,500 
Share issue costs   (15,675)   (37,735)   (149,251)   (430,081)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities   1,610,015   1,483,135   1,404,887   25,395,453 
Effect of Foreign Currency Translation on Cash   0   0   0   46,267 
Inflow (Outflow) of Cash   110,808   (288,870)   (184,996)   172,173 
Cash, Beginning of Period   61,365   350,235   535,231   0 
Cash, End of Period  $ 172,173  $ 61,365  $ 350,235  $ 172,173 
 
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (note 5)
 
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

 
1. INCORPORATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Integral Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on February 12, 1996 and has its
head office in Bellingham, Washington, USA.  The Company is in the development stage and is in the business of researching,
developing and commercializing new electronically-conductive resin-based materials called ElectriPlast.

The Company will be devoting all of its resources to the research, development and commercialization of its ElectriPlast technology.

2. GOING CONCERN

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis which assumes the Company will continue in
operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the ordinary course of
business.  The Company’s operations have resulted in a net loss of $3,400,434 (2011 - $2,841,285; 2010 - $2,929,737) for the year
ended June 30, 2012, and has an accumulated deficit of $40,314,166 (2011 - $36,898,272) and a working capital deficiency of
$2,142,183 (2011 - $714,382) as at June 30, 2012.  The Company has not yet commenced revenue-producing operations and has
significant expenditure requirements to continue to advance its research, developing and commercializing new antenna
technologies.  The Company estimates that without further funding, it will deplete its cash resources within the first quarter of
2013.  These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s future operations and its continuation as a going concern are dependent upon its ability to raise additional capital and
to sell its products and services to new customers, generate positive cash flows from operations and ultimately attain profitability.

Financing transactions may include the issuance of equity securities, obtaining additional credit facilities or other financing
mechanisms.  However, the trading price of the Company’s common stock and the downturn in the United States stock markets could
make it more difficult to obtain financing through the issuance of equity securities.

These consolidated financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern assumption were not
appropriate because management believes that the actions already taken or planned will mitigate the adverse conditions and events that
raise doubts about the validity of the going concern assumption used in preparing these consolidated financial
statements.  Management intends to raise additional capital through stock issuances to finance operations.

If none of these events occur, there is a risk that the business will fail.  The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the recoverability of assets and classification of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (“US GAAP”) and are presented in United States dollars.

 (a) Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Integral
Vision Systems, Inc. ("IVSI"), Antek Wireless Inc. ("Antek") and Electriplast Corp. (formerly Plastenna, Inc.)
(“Electriplast”), and its 76.625%-owned subsidiary, Emergent Technologies Corp. ("ETC"), which is currently inactive.  All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

 (b) Loss per share

Basic loss per share computations are based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period.  Common share equivalents consisting of preferred stock, stock options and warrants are not considered in the
computation of diluted loss per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive.

 (c) Stock issued in exchange for services

The valuation of common stock issued in exchange for services is valued at an estimated fair market value of the Company’s
stock price based upon other sales and issuances of the Company's common stock within the same general time period.

 (d) Revenue recognition

The Company has not generated significant revenue since inception. Although the Company has begun to receive some
revenue from the sale of material for commercial applications, the Company is devoting substantially all its efforts to
developing the business and, therefore, still qualifies as a development stage enterprise.  All revenue to date, in accordance
with development stage enterprise, is recorded against research and development expenditures.

 (e) Foreign currency translation

The Company’s functional and reporting currency is the US dollar.  Transactions and balances for the Company’s operations
which are not in US dollars are translated into US dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet dates for
monetary assets and liabilities, and at historical exchange rates for non-monetary assets and liabilities.  Revenues and
expenses are translated at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction, except for amortization and depreciation, which
are translated on the same basis as the related assets.  Resulting translation gains or losses are included in the statements of
operations.

 (f) Research and development

Research and development expenditures are charged to operations as incurred.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

 (g) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.  Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates include valuation
allowance for deferred income tax assets, the determination of the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-
based compensation and the determination of the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the derivative financial
liability.  Actual results could differ from those estimates and could impact future results of operations and cash flows.

 (h) Financial instruments

The Company considers all highly liquid interest-earning investments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase to be cash equivalents.  Investments with original maturities of greater than three months and remaining maturities of
less than one year are classified as short-term investments.  All cash equivalents and short-term investments are classified as
available-for-sale and are recorded at market value using the specific identification method.  Changes in market value are
reflected in other comprehensive income (excluding other-than-temporary impairments).

Equity and other investments classified as long-term include both debt and equity instruments.  Debt securities and publicly
traded equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are recorded at market value using the specific identification
method.  Changes in market value are reflected in other comprehensive income (excluding other-than-temporary
impairments).  All other investments, excluding those accounted for using the equity method, are recorded at cost.

 (i) Compound financial instruments

On initial recognition, the Company allocates the proceeds of compound financial instruments between its separate
components.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company records debt classified as other financial liabilities at amortized cost using the
effective interest method such that upon maturity, the debt balance recorded will equal the maturity value of the remaining
outstanding debt. The increase in the debt balance is reflected as interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations.
The derivative liability is adjusted to fair value at each reporting period with the corresponding gain or loss reported in net
loss.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

 (j) Fair value measurements

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the balance sheets are categorized based upon the level of judgement associated
with the inputs used to measure their fair value. For certain of the Company’s financial instruments including cash and
accounts payable, the carrying values approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.

ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. In accordance with ASC 820, these inputs are
summarized in the three broad levels listed below:

 · Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical securities;
 · Level 2 – Other significant observable inputs that are observable through corroboration with market data (including

quoted prices in active markets for similar securities); and
 · Level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs that reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability.

 (k) Income taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability approach in its method of accounting for income taxes that requires the recognition
of deferred tax liabilities and assets for expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities.  A valuation allowance against deferred tax assets is recorded if, based
upon weighted available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The impact of an uncertain tax position that is more likely than not of being sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing
authority is recognized at the largest amount that is more likely than not to be sustained.  No portion of an uncertain tax
position will be recognized if the position has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained.

 (l) Stock-based compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense associated with stock options and other forms of equity
compensation by estimating the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date of grant using the market price of
common stock or the Black-Scholes option pricing model.  The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to
vest is recognized as an expense over the requisite service periods in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations.  The Company uses the straight-line single-option method to recognize the value of stock-based compensation
expense for all share-based payment awards.  Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements
of operations is reduced for estimated forfeitures, as it is based on awards ultimately expected to vest.  Forfeitures are
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

 (m) Recently adopted accounting pronouncements

 (i) The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) has issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No.
2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): Improving Disclosures about Fair Value
Measurements. This ASU requires some new disclosures and clarifies some existing disclosure requirements
about fair value measurement as set forth in Codification Subtopic 820-10. The FASB’s objective is to improve
these disclosures and, thus, increase the transparency in financial reporting. Specifically, ASU 2010-06 amends
Codification Subtopic 820-10 to now require:

 · A reporting entity should disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements and describe the reasons for the transfers; and

 · In the reconciliation for fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs, a reporting entity
should present separately information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements.

In addition, ASU 2010-06 clarifies the requirements of the following existing disclosures:

 · For purposes of reporting fair value measurement for each class of assets and liabilities, a reporting entity
needs to use judgment in determining the appropriate classes of assets and liabilities; and

 · A reporting entity should provide disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair
value for both recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements.

ASU 2010-06 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, except for
the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the roll forward of activity in Level 3 fair value
measurements. Those disclosures are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for interim
periods within those fiscal years. Early application is permitted. The adoption of this statement does not significantly
impact the Company’s disclosures.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

 (m) Recently adopted accounting pronouncements (Continued)

 (ii) The FASB has issued ASU 2010-29, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Disclosure of Supplementary Pro
Forma Information for Business Combinations. This ASU reflects the decision reached in EITF Issue No. 10-G.
The amendments in this ASU affect any public entity as defined by Topic 805, Business Combinations, that
enters into business combinations that are material on an individual or aggregate basis.

The amendments in this ASU specify that if a public entity presents comparative financial statements, the entity
should disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination(s) that occurred
during the current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period only. The
amendments also expand the supplemental pro forma disclosures to include a description of the nature and amount
of material, non-recurring pro forma adjustments directly attributable to the business combination included in the
reported pro forma revenue and earnings.

The amendments are effective prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2010. Early adoption is
permitted. The adoption of this statement does not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets and results of operations or cash flows.
 

 (n) Recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

 (i) The FASB has issued ASU No. 2011-12, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for
Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
in ASU No. 2011-05. The amendments to the Codification in ASU No. 2011-12 are effective at the same time as
the amendments in ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive
Income, so that entities will not be required to comply with the presentation requirements in ASU No. 2011-05
that ASU No. 2011-12 is deferring.

In order to defer only those changes in ASU No. 2011-05 that relate to the presentation of reclassification
adjustments, the paragraphs in ASU No. 2011-12 supersede certain pending paragraphs in ASU No. 2011-05. The
amendments are being made to allow the FASB time to re-deliberate whether to present on the face of the financial
statements the effects of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income on the components of net
income and other comprehensive income for all periods presented. While the FASB is considering the operational
concerns about the presentation requirements for reclassification adjustments and the needs of financial statement
users for additional information about reclassification adjustments, entities should continue to report reclassifications
out of accumulated other comprehensive income consistent with the presentation requirements in effect before ASU
No. 2011-05.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

 (n) Recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted (Continued)

 (i) (Continued)

All other requirements in ASU No. 2011-05 are not affected by ASU No. 2011-12, including the requirement to
report comprehensive income either in a single continuous financial statement or in two separate but consecutive
financial statements. Public entities should apply these requirements for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this statement is not anticipated to have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets and results of operations or cash flows.

 (ii) The FASB has issued ASU No. 2011-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and
Liabilities. The eligibility criteria for offsetting are different in International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and US GAAP. Offsetting, otherwise known as netting, is the presentation of assets and liabilities as a
single net amount in the balance sheet. Unlike IFRS, US GAAP allows companies the option to present net in
their balance sheet derivatives that are subject to a legally enforceable netting arrangement with the same party
where rights of set-off are only available in the event of default or bankruptcy.

To address these differences between IFRS and US GAAP, in January 2011 the FASB and the IASB (the
“Boards”) issued an exposure draft that proposed new criteria for netting that were narrower than the current
conditions currently in US GAAP. Nevertheless, in response to feedback from their respective stakeholders, the
Boards decided to retain their existing offsetting models. Instead, the Boards have issued common disclosure
requirements related to offsetting arrangements to allow investors to better compare financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS or US GAAP.

The amendments to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification TM (the “Codification”) in ASU 2011-11, Balance
Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities, require an entity to disclose information
about offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of its financial statements to understand the effect of those
arrangements on its financial position.

Coinciding with the release of ASU No. 2011-11, the IASB has issued Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 7). This amendment requires disclosures about the offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities common to those in ASU No. 2011-11.

An entity is required to apply the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,
and interim periods within those annual periods. An entity should provide the disclosures required by those
amendments retrospectively for all comparative periods presented. The adoption of this standard is not anticipated to
have a material impact on the Company’s disclosures.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

 (n) Recent accounting pronouncements not yet adopted (Continued)

 (iii) The FASB has issued ASU No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive
Income. This ASU amends the FASB Codification to allow an entity the option to present the total of
comprehensive income, the components of net income and the components of other comprehensive income either
in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. In both
choices, an entity is required to present each component of net income along with total net income, each
component of other comprehensive income along with a total for other comprehensive income, and a total amount
for comprehensive income. ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to present the components of other
comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders' equity (deficit). The amendments to the
Codification in the ASU do not change the items that must be reported in other comprehensive income or when an
item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to net income.

ASU 2011-05 should be applied retrospectively. For public entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years,
and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of this statement is not
anticipated to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations or
cash flows.

 (iv) The FASB has issued ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve
Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in US GAAP and IFRS. This ASU represents
the converged guidance of the Boards on fair value measurement. The collective efforts of the Boards and their
staff, reflected in ASU 2011-04, have resulted in common requirements for measuring fair value and for
disclosing information about fair value measurements, including a consistent meaning of the term “fair value.”
The Boards have concluded the common requirements will result in greater comparability of fair value
measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with US GAAP and IFRS.

The amendments to the Codification in this ASU are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are effective
during interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early application is not permitted. The
adoption of this standard is not anticipated to have a material impact on the Company’s disclosures.
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INTEGRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(A Development Stage Company)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(US Dollars)
 

 
4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

 (a) Common stock

 (i) During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company:

 (a) Issued 270,000 shares of common stock as consideration for consulting services.  These shares have
been recorded at a value of $81,000 representing the fair value of the shares on the date of issuance.

 (b) Closed three private placements for which it received gross proceeds of $1,542,888. The first private
placement amounted to $743,190 for issuance of 2,123,400 units, each unit consisting of one share of
common stock at $0.35 and one warrant at $0.001. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share
of common stock on or before February 8, 2012 at an exercise price of $0.70. The second private
placement amounted to $228,534 for issuance of 507,853 units, each unit consisting of one share of
common stock at $0.45 and one warrant at $0.001. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share
of common stock on or before May 14, 2012 at an exercise price of $0.70. The third private placement
amounted to $571,164 for issuance of 1,631,899 units, each unit consisting of one share of common
stock at $0.35 and one warrant at $0.001. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of
common stock on or before June 3, 2012 at an exercise price of $0.70. Exercise of all the investment
warrants may be required in the event that the market price for the common stock exceeds $1.30 per
share.

Total commission costs paid amounted to $149,251.

The Company determined that the warrants did not contain any provisions that would preclude equity
treatment.

 (ii) During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Company:

 (a) Closed a private placement of 1,006,979 units, each unit consisting of one share of common stock at
$0.65 and one-half warrant at $0.001. Each whole warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of
common stock on or before December 31, 2012 at an exercise price of $1.00. Exercise of all the
investment warrants may be required in the event that the market price for the common stock exceeds
$1.50 per share.

Gross proceeds received during the year ended June 30, 2011 totalled $643,285, and gross proceeds
received during the year ended June 30, 2010, previously shown as subscriptions received, totalled
$11,250.

 (b) Closed a private placement of 813,063 units, each unit consisting of one share of common stock at $0.55
and one warrant at $0.001. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock on or
before February 28, 2013, at an exercise price of $1.00. Exercise of all the investment warrants may be
required in the event that the market price for the common stock exceeds $1.50 per share.

The Company determined that the warrants did not contain any provisions that would preclude equity
treatment.
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (a) Common stock (Continued)

 (ii) (Continued)

 (c) Issued 330,879 shares of restricted common stock and paid cash of $37,735, as consideration for private
placement share issue costs payable. The shares have been recorded at an aggregate fair value of
$137,481.

Of the amounts above, $52,719 was accrued as share issue costs as at June 30, 2010. The net of these
amounts total $122,497 and such amount is included as stock issue costs in the accompanying consolidated
statements of stockholders’ equity (deficit).

 (d) Issued 860,800 shares of common stock upon exercise of 860,800 share purchase warrants at $0.50 per
warrant, recording gross proceeds of $430,400.

 (iii) During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Company entered into contracts for consulting services, which call for
stock and option awards over the terms of the contracts (note 13).

It was determined that these were non-employee awards which did not contain a performance commitment but all
terms were known up-front. In accordance with ASC 505-50, Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees, the fair
value of these awards is measured at the grant date and at each subsequent reporting date until the counterparty’s
performance is complete. The total fair value expense is recognized over the service period.

 (a) The Company issued 50,000 shares of restricted common stock on execution of the agreement dated
November 19, 2010, 75,000 shares of restricted common stock thirty days from the execution date and
125,000 shares of restricted common stock ninety days from the execution date. On the six- and nine-
month anniversaries, 125,000 shares of restricted common stock are to be issued for a total of 500,000
shares of restricted common stock. Restrictions will be removed upon contract completion.

The Company issued 250,000 shares of common stock at a fair value of $294,303, which has been
included as consulting fees.

 (b) The Company issued 150,000 shares of common stock on execution of the agreement dated December 1,
2010. On the six-month anniversary, 100,000 shares of common stock are to be issued.

The Company issued 150,000 shares of common stock at a fair value of $105,000, which has been
included as consulting fees.
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (a) Common stock (Continued)

 (iii) (Continued)

 (c) The Company issued 46,118 shares of common stock and a fair value of $82,500 has been recorded and
included as consulting fees.

 (iv) During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company completed five private placements.

 (a) The first private placement amounted to $23,000 for the issuance of 41,819 units consisting of common
stock at $0.55 per share and warrants at $0.001 per warrant to purchase 41,819 shares of common stock
on or before December 31, 2013 at an exercise price of $1.00 per share.

 (b) The second private placement amounted to $179,000 for the issuance of 511,428 units consisting of
common stock at $0.35 per share and warrants at $0.001 per warrant to purchase 511,428 shares of
common stock on or before November 29, 2016 at an exercise price of $0.70 per share.

 (c) The third private placement amounted to $200,000 for the issuance of 571,128 units consisting of
common stock at $0.35 per share and warrants at $0.001 per warrant to purchase 856,692 shares of
common stock on or before January 3, 2014 at an exercise price of $0.70 per share.

 (d) The fourth private placement amounted to $200,000 for the issuance of 666,666 units consisting of
common stock at $0.30 per share and warrants at $0.001 per warrant to purchase 1,000,000 shares of
common stock on or before March 31, 2014 at an exercise price of $0.57 per share.

 (e) The fifth private placement amounted to $550,774 for the issuance of 1,573,939 units consisting of
common stock at $0.35 per share and warrants at $0.001 per warrant to purchase 2,360,459 shares of
common stock on or before January 31, 2014 at an exercise price of $0.70 per share. Share issue costs
of $12,875 were incurred.

The Company determined that the warrants did not contain any provisions that would preclude equity treatment.

The holder of a convertible debenture converted $138,000 of principal to 629,158 shares of the Company’s common stock
resulting in $236,926, representing the present value of convertible debenture and the fair value of derivative liability
recorded, allocated to equity, see note 5.
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (b) Preferred stock

The preferred stock may be issued in one or more series.  The distinguishing features of each series, including preference,
rights and restriction, are to be determined by the Company's Board of Directors upon the establishment of each such series.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company designated 1,000,000 of its authorized 20,000,000 preferred shares as
Series A convertible preferred stock with a par value of $0.001 each and a stated value and liquidation preference of $1.00 per
share.

Cumulative dividends are accrued at the rate of 5% annually, payable in cash or shares of common stock at the option of the
Company.  The shares may be converted to restricted shares of common stock at the average trading price ten days prior to
conversion and are entitled to votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which each series of preferred stock
may be converted.  Each Series A convertible preferred share may be redeemed by the Company for $1.50 within one year
after the date of issue and for $2.00, $2.50, $3.00, $3.50 and $4.00 per share in each of the subsequent five years after the
date of issue, with the redemption price increasing by $0.50 each year thereafter. The Company may, at its discretion, redeem
the shares at a price higher than stipulated herein.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company agreed to settle $383,228 of accounts payable and $281,182 of long-term
debt, both amounts owed to officers and directors of the Company, by issuing 664,410 shares of Series A convertible
preferred stock.

During the years ended June 30, 2001 to June 30, 2005, a total of 355,872 shares of preferred stock were redeemed.

 (c) Stock options and stock-based compensation

Stock option plans

In January 2001, the Company adopted the Integral Technologies, Inc. 2001 Stock Plan (the "2001 Plan"), a non-qualified
stock option plan under which the Company may issue up to 2,500,000 stock options and bonuses of common stock of the
Company to provide incentives to officers, directors, key employees and other persons who contribute to the success of the
Company.  This plan was amended during December 2001 to increase the number of common stock options that may be
granted from 2,500,000 to 3,500,000 stock options.  As at June 30, 2012, there were 464,500 common stock options
available under this plan.

In April 2003, the Company adopted the "Integral Technologies, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan" (the "2003 Plan"), a non-qualified
stock option plan under which the Company may issue up to 1,500,000 stock options.  As of June 30, 2012, there were
1,375,000 common stock options available under this plan.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company adopted the "Integral Technologies, Inc. 2009 Stock Plan" (the "2009
Plan"), a non-qualified stock option plan under which the Company may issue up to 4,000,000 common stock options.  As of
June 30, 2012, there were 660,500 common stock options available under this plan.
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (c) Stock options and stock-based compensation (Continued)

Pursuant to the 2001, 2003 and 2009 Plans

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company extended the expiry dates of 625,000 common stock options, which
resulted in additional stock-based compensation of $180,000.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Company granted options to directors and consultants to acquire a total of
1,500,000 shares of common stock, exercisable at $0.25 per share.  Director options will expire the earlier of December 31,
2014 or one year after termination of employment with the Company, whilst consultant options will expire the earlier of
December 31, 2012 or six months after termination of employment with the Company. During the year ended June 30, 2010,
the Company also signed a consulting agreement that expired on July 31, 2011.  The Company granted an option to acquire a
total of 2,000,000 shares of common stock, exercisable at $0.25 per share to the consultant.  Every three months, 200,000
options vested beginning July 10, 2009 to April 10, 2011, and the remaining 400,000 options vested on July 10, 2011.  All
vested options will expire the earlier of December 31, 2012 or six months after termination of employment with the
Company.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Company granted options to directors to acquire a total of 600,000 shares of
common stock exercisable at $0.85 per share. Every six months, 100,000 options will vest beginning June 1, 2011 to
December 1, 2013 and 100,000 vested options will expire the earlier of every six months beginning June 1, 2014 to
December 1, 2016 or one year after termination of employment with the Company (note 13(a)).

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Company granted options to consultants to acquire a total of 1,775,000 shares of
common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $0.48 per share; 125,000 options vested on the grant date.  Of the
remaining 1,650,000 granted options (notes 13(b), and (d)), 275,000 options will vest every six months from grant date and
expire the earlier of every six months from the third anniversary of the vesting date or six months after termination of the
consulting agreement.

Stock-based compensation

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company recorded stock-based compensation expense with respect to vested stock
options of $337,002 (2011 - $321,128), which has been included as consulting fees.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, 300,000 consulting warrants with expiry dates of February 28, 2012, were extended to
February 28, 2014. The Company recorded stock-based compensation expense with respect to the amended terms of $39,696
(2011 - $nil), which has been included as consulting fees.
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (c) Stock options and stock-based compensation (Continued)

Stock-based compensation not yet recognized at June 30, 2012 relating to non-vested stock options was $115,826, which will
be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.75 years.

Key assumptions

The fair value of the Company’s stock options was estimated on the measurement date using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions:

  2012   2011   2010  
          
Expected life (years)   3.48   4.33   2.39 
Interest rate   1.03%  1.27%  1.10%
Volatility   102.31%  96.27%  162.90%
Dividend yield   0.00%  0.00%  0.00%
Estimated forfeitures   0.00%  0.00%  0.00%

Expected life: The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock-based awards are expected to be
outstanding and was determined based on historical experience and vesting schedules of similar awards.

Risk-free interest rate: The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method on the
implied yield currently available on US Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term.

Expected volatility: The Company’s expected volatility represents the weighted average historical volatility of the Company’s
common stock for a period equal to the expected life of the options.

Expected dividend: The Black-Scholes valuation model calls for a single expected dividend yield as an input.  The dividend
yield is determined by dividing the expected per stock dividend for its common stock during the coming year by the grant date
stock price of those stock.  The expected dividend assumption is based on the Company’s current expectations about its
anticipated dividend policy.

Estimated forfeitures: Represents the Company’s historical forfeitures for the most recent two-year period and considers
termination behavior as well as analysis of actual option forfeitures.
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (c) Stock options and stock-based compensation (Continued)

Stock option activity

The following table summarizes the Company’s stock option activity for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

  
Number of

Options   
Price Per
Option   

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price  
          

Outstanding, June 30, 2009   3,370,000  $
0.50 to $

2.25  $ 1.21 
Granted   3,500,000  $ 0.25  $ 0.25 

Expired   (300,000) $
1.00 to $

1.16  $ 1.08 

Cancelled   (2,445,000) $
0.65 to $

2.25  $ 1.28 
             

Outstanding, June 30, 2010   4,125,000  $
0.25 to $

1.00  $ 0.36 

Granted   2,375,000  $
0.25 to $

0.85  $ 0.58 
             

Outstanding, June 30, 2012 and 2011   6,500,000  $
0.25 to $

1.00  $ 0.44 

Exercisable, June 30, 2012   5,100,000  $
0.25 to $

1.00  $ 0.40 
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (c) Stock options and stock-based compensation (Continued)

Stock option activity (Continued)

The following summarizes the options outstanding and exercisable:
 

  Number of Options  

Expiry Date  
Exercise

Price   
June 30,

2012   
June 30,

2011  
          
December 31, 2013(1)  $ 1.00   110,000   110,000 
December 31, 2012  $ 0.25   2,500,000   2,500,000 
December 31, 2013(2)  $ 1.00   100,000   100,000 
March 9, 2014  $ 0.25   125,000   125,000 
June 1, 2014  $ 0.85   100,000   100,000 
October 15, 2014  $ 0.50   100,000   100,000 
July 31, 2014(3)  $ 1.00   415,000   415,000 
December 1, 2014  $ 0.50   175,000   175,000 
December 1, 2014  $ 0.85   100,000   100,000 
December 31, 2014  $ 0.25   1,000,000   1,000,000 
April 15, 2015  $ 0.50   100,000   100,000 
June 1, 2015  $ 0.50   175,000   175,000 
June 1, 2015  $ 0.85   100,000   100,000 
October 15, 2015  $ 0.50   100,000   100,000 
December 1, 2015  $ 0.50   175,000   175,000 
December 1, 2015  $ 0.85   100,000   100,000 
April 15, 2016  $ 0.50   100,000   100,000 
June 1, 2016  $ 0.50   175,000   175,000 
June 1, 2016  $ 0.85   100,000   100,000 
October 15, 2016  $ 0.50   100,000   100,000 
December 1, 2016  $ 0.50   175,000   175,000 
December 1, 2016  $ 0.85   100,000   100,000 
April 15, 2017  $ 0.50   100,000   100,000 
June 1, 2017  $ 0.50   175,000   175,000 
             
Total outstanding       6,500,000   6,500,000 
Total exercisable       5,100,000   3,950,000 

 (1) During the year ended June 30, 2010, the expiry date of the options was extended from December 31, 2011 to
December 31, 2013.

 
 (2) During the year ended June 30, 2010, the expiry date of these options was extended from November 15, 2010 to

December 31, 2013.
 
 (3) During the year ended June 30, 2010, the expiry date of these options was extended from December 31, 2010 to

July 31, 2014.
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (c) Stock options and stock-based compensation (Continued)

Stock option activity (Continued)

The number of options granted during the year ended June 30, 2012 that did not vest immediately upon grant was nil (2011 –
2,250,000; 2010 - 2,000,000), of which 750,000 vested during the year ended June 30, 2012 (2011 – 1,300,000; 2010 -
800,000) and 1,400,000 (2011 - 2,150,000; 2010 - 1,200,000) remain unvested at June 30, 2012.

No options were exercised during the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable as at June 30, 2012 was $471,250 (2011 - $906,250) and
$471,250 (2011 - $806,250), respectively. The aggregate intrinsic values exclude options having a negative aggregate
intrinsic value due to awards with exercise prices greater than market value. The intrinsic value is the difference between the
market value of the shares and the exercise price of the award as of the period end date.
 
 
The weighted average remaining contractual lives for options outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2012 are 2.00 and 1.43
years, respectively.

The weighted average measurement date fair value of options modified during the year ended June 30, 2012 was $nil (2011 -
$0.44), granted during the year ended June 30, 2012 was $nil (2011 - $0.57) and vested during the year ended June 30, 2012
was $0.18 (2011 - $0.42).

 (d) Stock purchase warrants

The following summarizes information about the Company’s stock purchase warrants outstanding:

  
Number of
Warrants   

Exercise
Price Per
Warrant   

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price  
          
Balance, June 30, 2010   8,763,952     $ 0.60 

Issued   1,316,553  $ 1.00  $ 1.00 
Exercised   (860,800) $ 0.50  $ 0.50 
Expired   (2,970,000) $ 0.50  $ 0.50 

             
Balance, June 30, 2011   6,249,705      $ 0.74 

Issued   4,770,398  $
0.57 to

$1.00  $ 0.68 
Reinstated(1)   3,040,000  $ 0.50  $ 0.50 

             
Balance, June 30, 2012   14,060,103      $ 0.67 
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (d) Stock purchase warrants (Continued)

 (1) During the year ended June 30, 2011 these investor warrants had expired. During the year ended June 30, 2012
these warrants were reinstated with original terms and holders. The expiry date of the reinstated warrants was
extended to December 31, 2013. This did not result in any additional incremental value recorded to paid in capital.

 
  Number of Warrants  

Expiry Date  
Exercise

Price   
June 30,

2012   
June 30,

2011  
          
December 31, 2013(1)  $ 0.50   3,710,000   670,000 
December 31, 2013(1)  $ 0.70   3,963,152   4,263,152 
December 31, 2013(1)  $ 1.00   1,358,372   1,316,553 
January 3, 2014  $ 0.70   856,692   0 
January 31, 2014  $ 0.70   2,360,459   0 
February 14, 2014(2)  $ 0.70   300,000   0 
March 31, 2014  $ 0.57   1,000,000   0 
November 29, 2016  $ 0.70   511,428   0 
             
Total outstanding and exercisable       14,060,103   6,249,705 

 (1) During the year ended June 30, 2012, these warrants were extended to December 31, 2013.
 (2) During the year ended June 30, 2012, 300,000 warrants with expiry dates of February 28, 2012, were extended

to February 14, 2014.

In August 2010, the Company extended the expiry date of 670,000 warrants which were originally issued in conjunction with
equity issues during 2008 from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011. The modification resulted in a deemed dividend
of $131,577, which was calculated as the difference in the fair value of the warrants immediately before and after the
modification using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following significant assumptions:

 
   Before    After  
         
Remaining term (years)   0.35   1.35 
Interest rate   0.16%  0.25%
Volatility   55.58%  119.04%
Dividend yield   0.00%  0.00%
Estimated forfeitures   0.00%  0.00%
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4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (Continued)

 (e) Promissory notes receivable at June 30, 2012 includes:

 (i) $17,500 (2010 - $17,500) due on exercise of 210,000 stock options, interest at 10% per annum, due November 1,
2002, subsequently extended to June 30, 2003; and

 (ii) $12,237 (2010 - $12,237) due on exercise of 23,000 stock options, interest at 10% per annum, due June 30,
2003.

Shares issued on exercise of options are restricted from trading.  The restrictions will not be removed until the respective
notes are paid to the Company.

 (f) Subscriptions received

 (i) During the year ended June 30, 2010, $11,250 was received for subscriptions of 15,000 units consisting of
common stock at $0.75 per share and warrants at $0.001 per share of common stock underlying the warrant to
purchase 15,000 shares of common stock on or before two years after the closing date at an exercise price of
$1.00 per share (exercise of the investment warrant may be required in the event that the market price for the
common stock exceeds $1.50 per share). These units were issued during the year ended June 30, 2011.

 (ii) During the year ended June 30, 2012, $191,600 was received for subscriptions of 540,640 units consisting of
common stock at $0.35 per share and warrants at $0.001 per share of common stock underlying the warrant to
purchase 810,960 shares of common stock on or before two years after the closing date at an exercise price of
$0.70.

5. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURE

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Company entered into a convertible debenture purchase agreement with Asher Enterprises
Inc.  The agreement involved five separate tranches of convertible debentures.  Each tranche is due approximately nine months after
this respective issuance.  The five debentures were issued as follows:

 ● August 9, 2011 received $53,000 (settled);
 ● September 15, 2011 received $50,000 (settled);
 ● October 15, 2011 received $35,000 (settled);
 ● April 18, 2012 received $53,500; and
 ● May 23, 2012 received $78,500.

The convertible debentures pay interest of 8% per annum and can be converted into common stock at the option of the holder at any
time after 180 days following the date of issuance.  Each debenture has a variable conversion price equal to 58% of the market
price.  Market price is defined as the average of the lowest three trading prices for the Company’s common stock during the ten trading
day period ending one trading day prior to the date of conversion notice with a limitation of 4.99% of the issued and outstanding
common stock at the time of conversion.
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5. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURE (Continued)

The convertible debenture may be repaid by the Company as follows:

 ● Outstanding principal multiplied by 135% together with accrued interest and unpaid  interest thereon if prepaid within a
period of 90 days beginning on the date of the note;

 ● Outstanding principal multiplied by 145% together with accrued interest and unpaid interest thereon if prepaid at any time
during the period beginning 91 days from the date of the note and ending on the date that is 150 days following the date of
the note; and

 ● Outstanding principal multiplied by 150% together with accrued interest and unpaid interest thereon if prepaid at any time
during the period beginning 151 days from the date of the note and ending on the date that is 180 days following the date
of the note.

After the expiration of the 180 days following the date of the note, the Company will have no right of prepayment.

The liability component of the convertible debentures were measured at the present value with the embedded conversion feature being
treated as a derivative liability with fair value measured at each reporting period.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, $138,000 of the debenture was settled by issuing 629,158 of the common stock of the
Company. $236,926 representing the fair value of the derivative liability and the amortized cost of convertible debenture settled was
included as additional paid in capital. For the year ended June 30, 2012, a fair value loss on the derivative liability of $89,326 was
recognized in the consolidated statement of operations.

The Company incurred $15,500 in transactions costs in connection with the issuance of the convertible debenture, which has been
recorded as a reduction of the carrying value of convertible debenture.

As at June 30, 2012, 301,261 (2011 – nil) shares of common stock of the Company would be required to settle the remaining tranches
of convertible debt.

The fair value of the derivative financial liability is calculated using the Black-Scholes valuation method at the consolidated balance
sheet date.

The following assumptions were used in determining the weighted average fair value of the derivative financial liability at inception:

  2012   2011  
       
Expected life (years)   0.76  nil  
Interest rate   0.71% nil  
Volatility   62.80% nil  
Dividend yield   N/A   N/A 
Estimated forfeitures   N/A   N/A 
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5. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURE (Continued)

The following assumptions were used in determining the weighted average fair value of the derivative financial liability on settlement:

  2012   2011  
       
Expected life (years)   0.20  nil  
Interest rate   0.66% nil  
Volatility   72.76% nil  
Dividend yield   N/A  N/A  
Estimated forfeitures   N/A  N/A  

The following assumptions were used in determining the weighted average fair value of the derivative financial liability at June 30,
2012:

  2012   2011  
       
Expected life (years)   0.62  nil  
Interest rate   0.94% nil  
Volatility   70.20% nil  
Dividend yield   N/A  N/A  
Estimated forfeitures   N/A  N/A  

The carrying value of the convertible debenture is as follows:

  2012   2011  
       
Fair value at inception of the loan  $ 158,500  $ 0 
Interest accrued   55,174   0 
Settlement (issuance of common shares)   (120,318)  0 
         
Carrying amount of convertible debenture  $ 93,356  $ 0 

The net value of the derivative financial liability is as follows:

  2012   2011  
       
Fair value at inception of the convertible debt  $ 111,501  $ 0 
Loss on fair value of derivative liability   89,326   0 
Settlement (issuance of common shares)   (116,109)  0 
         
Carrying amount of derivative liability  $ 84,718  $ 0 
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6. PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLE

On December 31, 2011, the Company entered into a promissory note agreement with Jasper Rubber Products, Inc. for $235,129,
which bears interest at 18% annually.  Any unpaid principal and unpaid accrued interest is due December 30, 2012, the maturity
date.  Any payments made during the year shall be first applied to unpaid accrued interest, then to the reduction of principal and finally
to any other accounts payable balances owing at the time of payment.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, $127,804 was repaid by the Company and applied towards accrued interest and principal.
Interest expense accrued and paid was $16,370.

7. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

           Period from  
           February 12,  
           1996  
           (Inception)  
  Years Ended June 30,   Through  
  2012   2011   2010   June 30, 2012  
             
Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactions        
Shares Issued for             

Redemption of preferred shares  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 415,000 
Property and equipment  $ 0 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 23,000 
Proprietary agreement  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 711,000 
Settlement of accounts payable  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 228,742 
Settlement of convertible debentures  $ 236,926  $ 0  $ 0  $ 236,926 
Services (provided by officers                 
and directors)  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 120,000 
Settlement of lawsuit  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 60,250 
Services  $ 34,954  $ 619,284  $ 81,000  $ 1,551,022 
Subscriptions received  $ 191,600  $ 11,250  $ 0  $ 57,750 
Acquisition of subsidiary  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 894,200 

Supplemental Cash Flow Information              
Interest paid  $ 0 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 81,111 
Income tax paid  $ 0 0  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 (a) Fair value

The carrying values of cash, accounts payable and accruals and promissory note payable approximate their fair values due to
the short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

The convertible debenture was recognized initially at fair value and, thereafter, has been accounted for at amortized cost. The
derivative financial liability is carried at fair value, and any gains or losses thereon are recognized in the consolidated
statement of operations.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

 (b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. The Company’s financial asset that is exposed to credit risk consists of cash, which is placed with
US and Canadian financial institutions.

Concentration of credit risk exists with respect to the Company’s cash as certain amounts are held at US and Canadian
financial institutions.  The maximum exposure is as follows:

  2012   2011  
       
Cash (US institution) – Non-FDIC insured  $ 160,188  $ 49,624 
Cash (CDN institution)   11,985   11,741 
         
  $ 172,173  $ 61,365 

 (c) Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk due to the short-term maturity of its monetary current assets and
current liabilities. The Company is exposed to interest rate price risk to the extent that market interest rates differ from the
fixed rate of interest of its convertible debenture (note 5) and promissory note (note 6). In 2012, a 0.38% change would have
a $1,000 (2010 - $nil) impact on the Company's net loss and comprehensive loss.

 (d) Currency risk

The Company translates the results of non-US transactions into US dollars using rates of exchange on the date of the
transaction.  The exchange rate varies from time to time.  This risk is considered nominal as the Company does not incur
significant transactions in currencies other than US dollars.

 (e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in satisfying financial obligations as they become due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to provide reasonable assurance that it will have sufficient funds to meet
liabilities when due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by forecasting cash flows required for operations and anticipated
investing and financing activities.

At June 30, 2012 the Company’s cash totalled $172,173 (2011 - $61,365), accounts payable and accruals of $2,032,309
(2011 - $775,747), a convertible debenture of $93,356 (2011 - $nil) and a promissory note payable of $123,696 (2011 -
$nil). The accounts payable are due in the first fiscal quarter of 2013. The convertible debenture is payable in common shares
of the entity and due during the third fiscal quarter of 2013. The promissory note payable is due December 30, 2012.

The Company requires significant additional funding to meet its administrative overhead costs and maintain its research and
development program in fiscal 2013.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

 (e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financing transactions may include the issuance of equity securities, obtaining additional credit facilities or other financing
mechanisms.  However, the trading price of the Company’s common stock and the downturn in the United States stock
markets could make it more difficult to obtain financing.

 (f) Classification of financial instruments

At June 30, 2012, the Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis are cash classified as a
“Level 1” financial instrument and derivative financial instrument classified as a “Level 3” financial instrument.

9. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following at June 30:

  2012   2011   2010  
          
Current expense  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0 
Deferred benefit   (522,000)  (846,000)  878,000 
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance   522,000   846,000   (878,000)
             
Total provision for income tax  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0 

The total provision differs from the amount computed by applying federal statutory rates to loss before income taxes due to the
following at June 30:

  2012   2011   2010  
          
Provision for income tax at the statutory rate of 34%  $ (1,001,000) $ (966,000) $ (996,000)
             
Increase (decrease) in taxes due to             

Change in valuation allowance   522,000   846,000   (878,000)
Disallowed expense   2,000   2,000   1,000 
Expiration of net operating loss   477,000   118,000   0 
Expiration of capital loss   0   0   425,000 
Change in deferred stock-based compensation   0   0   1,448,000 

Total provision for income tax  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0 

The Company has used a federal statutory rate of 34%.  All of the Company's operations are in Washington State, which has no
corporation income tax, so no provision for state income tax is needed.
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9. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the tax effects of the temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. The Company has net deferred income tax assets
which have been reduced to zero through a valuation allowance because of uncertainties relating to utilization of future tax benefits.
The increase (decrease) in the valuation allowance for the years ended June 30, 2012, June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010 are
respectively $522,000, $846,000 and ($878,000). The components of the net deferred income tax assets, calculated at an effective rate
of 34%, are as follows at June 30:

  2012   2011   2010  
          
Deferred income tax assets          
Current deferred tax assets          

Accrued liabilities  $ 0  $ 0  $ 14,000 
Valuation allowance   0   0   (14,000)

             
Total current deferred tax assets   0   0   0 
             
Non-current deferred tax assets             

Net operating loss carry-forwards   9,455,000   9,048,000   8,102,000 
Non-qualified stock options   1,038,000   923,000   762,000 
Capital loss carry-forwards   0   0   0 
Investment reserve   0   0   247,000 
Legal dispute reserve   182,000   182,000   182,000 
Basis difference of fixed assets   1,000   1,000   1,000 
Valuation allowance   (10,676,000)  (10,154,000)  (9,294,000)

             
Total non-current deferred tax assets   0   0   0 
             
Non-current deferred tax liabilities   0   0   0 
             
Net deferred tax asset  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0 
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9. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

For tax purposes, the Company has unused net operating losses available to carry-forward to future tax years.  At June 30, 2012, the
amounts and expiration dates of the Company's net operating loss carry-forwards are as follows.

Year Ended Expires  Amount  
     

June 30, 1998
June 30,

2018  $ 999,000 

June 30, 1999
June 30,

2019   1,361,000 

June 30, 2000
June 30,

2020   1,091,000 

June 30, 2001
June 30,

2021   2,002,000 

June 30, 2002
June 30,

2022   2,527,000 

June 30, 2003
June 30,

2023   1,364,000 

June 30, 2004
June 30,

2024   2,162,000 

June 30, 2005
June 30,

2025   2,208,000 

June 30, 2006
June 30,

2026   2,373,000 

June 30, 2007
June 30,

2027   1,177,000 

June 30, 2008
June 30,

2028   1,676,000 

June 30, 2009
June 30,

2029   1,439,000 

June 30, 2010
June 30,

2030   1,699,000 

June 30, 2011
June 30,

2031   3,129,000 

June 30, 2012
June 30,

2032   2,600,000 
      
Total   $ 27,807,000 

Current federal tax laws include substantial restrictions on the utilization of net operating losses and tax credits in the event of an
ownership change of a corporation.  Accordingly, the Company's ability to utilize net operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards may
be limited as a result of such ownership changes, which could result in the expiration of carry-forwards before they are utilized.

For tax purposes, the Company had $1,405,000 unused net operating losses available for carry-forward to future tax years that expired
unused as of June 30, 2012.

In July 2006, the FASB released the Final Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (formerly FIN 48, now
ASC740-10). ASC740-10 prescribes the minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in
the financial statements. ASC740-10 also requires additional disclosure of the beginning and ending unrecognized tax benefits and
details regarding the uncertainties that may cause the unrecognized benefits to increase within a twelve month period.

The Company has an unrecognized tax benefit of $336,000 as of June 30, 2012, including no accrued amounts for interest and
penalties. In addition, the Company has not completed an analysis under IRC section 382 to determine if there have been any direct
and/or indirect ownership changes that would limit the use of net operating loss in future years.
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9. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The Company’s policy will be to recognize interest and penalties related to income taxes as a component of income tax expense. The
Company is subject to income tax examinations for US income taxes from the year ended June 30, 1996 forward. We do not anticipate
that total unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change prior to June 30, 2013.

 
10. LOSS PER SHARE

  
Income

(Numerator)   

Weighted
Average

Number of
Shares

(Denominator)   
Loss Per

Share  
          
2012          

Loss for the year  $ (3,400,434)      
Preferred stock dividends   (15,460)      

           
Loss attributable to common shareholders  $ (3,415,894)  59,780,612  $ (0.06)

             
2011             

Loss for the year  $ (2,841,285)        
Preferred stock dividends   (15,460)        

             
Loss attributable to common shareholders  $ (2,856,745)  56,487,578  $ (0.05)

             
2010             

Loss for the year  $ (2,929,737)        
Preferred stock dividends   (15,462)        

             
Loss attributable to common shareholders  $ (2,945,199)  51,520,654  $ (0.06)

Common share equivalents consisting of stock options and warrants are not considered in the computation of diluted loss per share
because their effect would be anti-dilutive.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no related party transactions during the years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 or 2010. As at June 30, 2012, $245,545 (2011 -
$5,160) was included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities owed to the Company’s CFO and CEO for outstanding management
fees and business related reimbursements.

12. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company operates primarily in one business segment, the development of electronically-conductive resin-based materials, with
operations located in the United States.
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13. COMMITMENTS

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Company entered into:

 (a) A Consulting and Confidentiality Agreement with a director, dated December 1, 2010, engaging the individual to provide
certain consulting services to the Company. The term of the agreement expires on November 30, 2013 and the Company
shall pay monthly consulting fees of $14,000 and issue 150,000 shares of common stock upon the execution of the
agreement and an additional 100,000 shares of common stock upon the six-month anniversary of the execution date (not
yet issued). The Company granted 600,000 stock options (note 4(c)) and an additional 1,250,000 stock options on the first
anniversary of the execution date of the agreement (not yet issued).

 (b) A Consulting and Confidentiality Agreement with a consultant, dated April 15, 2011, engaging the individual to provide
certain consulting services to the Company. The term of the agreement expires on April 15, 2014 and the Company shall
pay monthly consulting fees of $14,000 and issue 150,000 shares of common stock upon the execution of the agreement
(not yet issued) and an additional 100,000 shares of common stock upon the six-month anniversary of the execution date.
The Company granted 600,000 stock options (note 4(c)) and an additional 1,250,000 stock options on the first anniversary
of the execution date of the agreement (not yet issued).

 (c) A Consulting and Confidentiality Agreement with a consultant, dated June 1, 2011, engaging the individual to provide
certain consulting services to the Company. The term of the agreement expires on June 1, 2014 and the Company shall pay
monthly consulting fees of $14,000 and issue 150,000 shares of common stock upon the execution of the agreement (not
yet issued) and an additional 100,000 shares of common stock upon the six-month anniversary of the execution date. The
Company granted 600,000 stock options (note 4(c)) and an additional 1,250,000 stock options on the first anniversary of
the execution date of the agreement (not yet issued).

 (d) A Consulting and Confidentiality Agreement with a consultant, dated June 1, 2011, engaging the individual to provide
certain consulting services to the Company. The term of the agreement expires on June 1, 2014 and the Company shall pay
monthly consulting fees of $12,000 and issue 112,500 shares of common stock upon the execution of the agreement (not
yet issued) and an additional 75,000 shares of common stock upon the six-month anniversary of the execution date. The
Company granted 450,000 stock options (note 4(c)) and an additional 1,000,000 stock options on the first anniversary of
the execution date of the agreement (not yet issued).

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to June 30, 2012, the Company issued 1,398,333 units, each unit consisting of one share of common stock at $0.30 and
one warrant at $0.001. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of common stock on or before two years after the closing
date at an exercise price of $0.70.
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Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. ss.1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, William S. Robinson, Chief Executive Officer of Integral Technologies, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2012 of Integral Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Company’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of the Company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
 
 
(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

September 28, 2012  
  
/s/ William S. Robinson  
William S. Robinson, Chief Executive Officer  
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. ss.1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, William A. Ince, Chief Financial Officer of Integral Technologies, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2012 of Integral Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Company’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the Company and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of the Company’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):
 
 
(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

September 28, 2012  
  
/s/ William A. Ince  
William A. Ince, Chief Financial Officer  
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. ss.1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Integral Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William S. Robinson, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1)           The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2)           The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations

of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

September 28, 2012  
  
/s/ William S. Robinson  
William S. Robinson, Chief Executive Officer  
 
 





 Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. ss.1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Integral Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William A. Ince, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1)           The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2)           The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations

of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

September 28, 2012  
  
/s/ William A. Ince  
William A. Ince, Chief Financial Officer  
 
 




